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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the General Assembly of
Klimasan Klima Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Sirketi

A)  Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
1)  Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Klimasan Klima Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S (“the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Turkish
Accounting Standards (“TAS™).

2)  Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Independent Auditing Standards as published by the Capital
Markets Board and Independent Auditing Standards which is a part of the Turkish Auditing Standards
as published by Public Oversight, Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (POA). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with The Code of Ethics for Auditors (Code of Ethics) published by POA and the ethical
provisions subsumed in the legislation concerning the independent audit of the financial statements. We
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code of Ethics and the other
ethical obligations under the scope of the legislation. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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3)

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter How key audit matter was addressed
Consideration of Bill-and-Hold
Transactions
Through our audit, we evaluated the controls designed for
Group’s revenue strcam consists of | the risk existing in the revenue recognition at the correct

manufacturing and sales of industrial type
coolers and freezers.

Upon requests by the customers, the Group
carries out a part of its sales through bill-
and-hold agreements. Bill and hold is a form
of sales arrangement in which the Company
bills a customer for products but does not
ship the product until a later date.

Under the bill-and-hold agreements, the
Group prepares invoices for sales of the
products without issuing the delivery notes
and without the goods Ileaving the
warchouse.

Revenue is recognized when significant
risks and rewards of ownership are
transferred to the buyer. Due to the high risk
of error, these non-standard transactions are
considered a key audit matter.

Significant accounting policies are disclosed
in Note 2.

period. Additional audit procedures performed are as
follows:

We tested whether or not the goods to be dispatched to
the customers at a future date are ready to deliver.

We obtained the list of goods that will be dispatched to
the customers at a future date under the scope of the bill-
and-hold agreements. The compliance of the goods with
the relevant stocklist is assured through the application
of sampling method during the inventory counts.
Furthermore, we observed that the aforementioned
goods are held separately from the stocks owned by the
Group.

We chose customers from those have bill-and-hold
agreements through a sampling method. We obtained
letters of confirmation regarding their
acknowledgement of the future delivery and the fact
that they have taken over the risks and liabilities of the
products.

We tested that there is no change in the payment method
for the sales realized under the scope of the bill-and-
hold agreements and that the customary payment
method applicable to all other sales is applied.

We tested the sales returns from those under the scope
of the bill-and-hold agreements in the subsequent
period.

Depending on the audit procedures applied, we deemed the
evaluations of the management and the accounting policies
applied to be appropriate.
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4)

3)

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Turkish Accounting Standards (“TAS”), and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

In an independent audit, our responsibilities as independent auditors are as follows:

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the Independent Auditing Standards published by the Capital
Markets Board will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs issued by the Capital Markets Board, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. (The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,)

e  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriatencss of management’s use of the going concemn basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
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the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

¢ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
arc therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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B) Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 398 of the Turkish Commercial Code (“TCC”) No.
6102, the auditor’s report on the system and the committee of early detection of risk has been submitted
to the Board of Directors of the Company on 5 March 2018.

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, nothing has come to our attention that
may cause us to believe that the Group’s set of accounts and financial statements prepared for the period
| January-31 December 2017 does not comply with TCC and the provisions of the Company’s articles
of association in relation to financial reporting.

In accordance with paragraph four of the Article 402 of TCC, the Board of Directors provided us all the
required information and documentation with respect to our audit.

The independent audit herein, is conducted and concluded by the engagement partner Giilin Giince.

DRT BAGIMSIZ DENETIM VE SERBEST MUHASEBECI MALI MUSAVIRLIK A S.
Member of DELOITTE TOUCHE TOHMATSU LIMITED

Giilin Giince SMMM
Partner

[zmir, 5 March 2018
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT

31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"})

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash And Cash Equivalents

Financial Investments

Trade Receivables
Trade Receivables from Related Parties
Trade Receivables from Third Parties

Other Receivables
Other Receivables from Related Parties
Other Receivables from Third Parties

Inventories

Derivative Financial Instruments

Prepaid Expenses

Current Tax Assets

Other Current Assets

Non-Current Assets
Trade Receivables

Trade Receivables From Third Parties
Other Receivables

Other Receivables From Third Parties
Property, Plant And Equipment
Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Other Intangible Assets
Prepaid Expenses
Deferred Tax Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Audited
Current Period
31 December

Audited
Prior Period
31 December

Notes 2017 2016
554.131.425 472.741.216

3l 151.771.957 71.070.817
27 151.146.340 240.915.267
75.661.496 82.063.840

4.5 6.803.511 6.263.962
5 68.857.985 75.797.878
35.532.945 19.631.961

4.6 33.467.284 18.211.999
6 2.065.661 1.419.962
7 103.455.333 43.046.532
26 1.089.555 -
8 14.964.740 10.372.367
24 - 3.030.849
17 20.509.059 2.609.583
90.945.545 70.490.257

- 40.824

5 - 40.824
12.564 12.564

6 12,564 12.564
9 66.725.175 50.754.656
18.270.050 15.255.737

3.1 383.655 -
10 17.886.393 15.255.737
8 481.838 240,317
24 5.455.918 4.186.159
645.076.970 543.231.473

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT

31 DECEMBER 2017

(Al amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™))

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Short-Term Portion Of Long-Term Borrowings
Trade Payables

Trade Payables To Related Parties

Trade Payables To Third Parties
Payables Related To Employee Benefits
Other Payables

Other Payables To Third Parties
Deferred Income
Derivative Financial Instruments
Short-Term Provisions

Short-Term Provisions For Employee Benefits

Other Short-Term Provisions
Other Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Long-Term Borrowings
Other Payables
Other Payables To Third Parties
Long-Term Provisions

Long-Term Provisions For Employee Benefits

EQUITY
Share Capital
Adjustments To Share Capital
Restricted Reserves Appropriated From Profit
Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses
that will not be Reclassified Subsequently
to Profit or Loss
Foreign Currency Translation Differences
Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses
that may be Reclassified Subsequently to
Profit or Loss
Loss on Remeasurement of
Defined Benefit Plans
Retained Earnings
Net Profit for the Year
Non-Controlling [nterests
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Audited

Current Period

31 December

Audited
Prior Period
31 December

Notes 2017 2016
227.887.332 192.290.930

27 78.678.177 120.612.488
135.520.915 59.965.313

4.5 158.768 142.210
5 135.362.147 59.823.103
5 3.367.421 2.897.577
338.097 204832

6 338097 204.832
8 2.181.554 1.194.485
26 - 493,869
6.517.654 6.230.604

i5 2.249.348 2.749.131
i3 4.268.306 3481473
17 1.283.514 691.762
270.460.969 219.600.369

27 264.613.574 214.676.800
28.845 28.845

6 28.845 28.843
5.818.550 4.894.724

15 5.818.550 4894724
146.728.669 131.340.174

18 33.000.000 33.000.000
18 980.882 980.882
18 5.666.104 4.184.074
842.853 22R8.305

842.853 228.305

(2.920.778) (2.977.566)

(2.920.778) (2.977.566)

94.442 449 55.915.527

14.696.757 40.008.952

20,402 -

645.076.970 543.231.473

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.§. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™)}

Audited Audited
Current Period Prior Period
1 January - I January -
31 December 31 December
Notes 2017 2016
Revenue 19 426.705.590 337.777.906
Cost of Sales (-} 19 (342.784.156) (266.786.869)
GROSS PROFIT 83.921.434 70.991.037
General Administrative Expenses (-) 20 (14.195.302) (12.276.303)
Marketing Expenses (-) 20 (33.909.602) (25.645.624)
Research and Development Expenses (-) 20 (5.017.347) (4.049.488)
Other Income from QOperating Activities 21 9.929.353 6.025.749
Other Expenses from Operating Activities (-) 21 (685.992) (2.195.444)
OPERATING PROFIT 40.042.544 32.849.927
Income from Investing Activities 22 78.039.768 57.124.496
Expenses from Investing Activities (-} 23 (36.209.872) (3.488.175)
OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE FINANCE
EXPENSE 81.872.440 86.486.248
Finance Income and Expenses, (net) 23 (68.462.364) {43.253.086)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 13.410.076 43.233.162
Tax Expense 1.283.956 (3.224.210)
- Current Tax Expense 24 - (2.134.800)
- Deferred Tax Income / (Expense) 24 1.283.956 (1.089.410)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 14.694.032 40.008.952
Profit / (Loss) for the Year Attributable to:
Non - controlling interests (2.725) -
Owners of the Company 14.696.757 40.008.952
14.694.032 40.008.952
Earnings Per Share 25 0,4453 1,2124
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 671.336 161.374
Items that will not be Reclassified Subsequently to
Profit or Loss 56.788 (66.931)
Gains / (Loss) on Remeasurement of Defined
Benefit Plans 70.985 (83.664)
Deferred Tax Profit Related to Other
Comprehensive Income 24 (14.197) 16.733
Items that will be Reclassified Subsequently to Profit
or Loss 614.548 228.305
Foreign Currency Translation Differences 614.548 228.305
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 15.365.368 40,170.326

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these consotidated financial statements.

3



14

"SIUAWIZ]R)S [BIDUBUL) P21BPIJOSU0D 3say) jo wed [exdatul ue uuo) sajou SurAuedwodde sy

699°BTL 9P 0F 0L LSL969'P1 6P IEY'T6 POI'99Y'S CSRTrR (8LL076°T) 188°086 000000 CE LE0T 13qmAda(] [ J0 s¥ s2oUs|eg
890°59E°51 sz LEL969F] - - STy LR AL IS - - awosu) dasuaydwo) el
- - - otozsr 1} DLOTRE| - - - " saArasay |ofar] 2y o) sagpsues)
Lt Lel'ee - N - - - - - [SEETEIIT]
FULoNU03-BON P STCIIRSUES ]

- - (TS6'300°08) CS6'800°0F - - - - - Sgsurl]
PLTTOPCIEL - 156°800°0F LIS'SI6's% FLO PR SOE8TT (995°LL67T) 88086 000 000°EE LIDT A3enuRp | Jo 58 s33us|eg
PLIOFEIEN - 1S6°800°0F LIFG16'9% PLOTELY il 1ed (995'LL6'T) 188'086 0 000°CE 9107 13quIdd3( | JO S SHUR[FY
sTCoL oy - L6 70008 - - SOL'8TT (1€6'99) - - aweau] salsuayadwo ) |81 ),
(Lo6'L50'7) - - (L06°£50°T) - - - - fpuamala
PLT'SRS - - PLTSBE - - - - - [SAIUO ) UL 3 J3pU] S31UT

Furajoau) suoneuiquio ) ssautsng Jo 13313
- - - (BLOBSE1) BLOPSE| - - - - saalas3y (o) g 01 saysuer)
- - (966°068°10) 966’068 1T - - - - - SadpsumL)
I8+ IF9'T6 - 966°068°1T rTI1589¢ 966'618°7 - ($£9'016°27) 188086 0000 LE $107 Asenuef [ Jo s¥ s3ouRjug
Lynbzy s Imay g §35507] W04 woay S3A4353) UEISORS | suspd Hpusg prugag  jendey aaeys pEnde) aaegg
ol Ininenuo)y ) 0L 3N myoag purudosddy  Koudaim) JO YuRumSRROIY o) pusaysafpy

-uop §,I834 JoLAd [IINE T uiadog u(Q) ss0°] ey
¥ MURIYY
iy pauympay 50T 40 s507] J0
Wedd o) Apuanbasqng  Jyoag o) spuanbasqny
PayIsseIY PSSR 3q Jou

39 [w s sasoadnz a0 m Ry sasuadsy o
wodu] aarsuagardwo)  awodu| asuaygaacwo’)
YO PAFDWNIIY ANRO PARIRURRY

{11} Bary ysppng, w passandxa sjunowe ||y}
L10Z ¥39WADIA 1€ IANT dVAA FHL 404 ALINOT NI STONVHD 40 INIWHLV.LS GILVAITOSNOD

SATAVIAISANS SLI ANV 'S’V LIYVILL A JAVNVS VIAITI NVSVINITI



KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAY! VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDN 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"}}

A. Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Profit for the Year
Adjustments To Reconcile Profit For The Year

Adjustments Related to Depreciation and Amortization

Adjustment Related 10 Impairment (Reversal)
Adjustment Related to Impairment for Inventories
Adjustment Related to Impairment for Receivables

Adjustment Related to Provisions
Adjustment Related to Provision for

Emplovee Benefits

Adjustments Related 1o Legal Provision
Adjustment Related to Warranty Provision
Adjustment Related to Other Provision

Adjustment Related to Interest Income and Expenses
Adjustment Related to Interest Income
Adjustment Related 1o Interest Expenses
Financial Income from Terms of Sales
Deferred Financial Expense from Term Receives

Adjustment Related 10 Unrealized

Foreign Currency Exchange Differences
Adjustments Related to Fair Value Gains
Adjustment Related to Fair 'alue of
Financial Instrument Gain
Adjustment Related to Fair I'alue of
Derivative Instrument Gain
Adjustment Related to Tax (Income) / Expense
Adjustment Related to Gain on
Disposal of Non-current Assets
Adfustment Related to Gain on
Disposal of Property, Plant and Equipment
and Intangible Assels

Changes in the Working Capital
Adjustment Related to Increase in Inventories
Adjustment Related to Increase in Trade Receivables
Adjustment Related to Decrease / {Increase)

Other Receivables from Operations

Adjustment Related to Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables

Decrease / {Increase) in Prepaid Expenses
Decrease in Deferred Income

Adjustment Related to Increase in Other Payables for Operations

Cash generated from operations

Payments for Employee Termination Benefits
Payments for Other Provisions
Tax Returns / {Payments)

Audited Audited

Current Prior

Period Period

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December

Notes 2017 2016
14.694.032 40.008.952

2.10 11.089.272 8.707.892
7 (555.422) 561.054

5 47.322 634.773
15 3.955.294 4.605.136
i3 276.158 540 566
13 869.234 1106.125
i3 {332.908) (328.503)
22,2331 {20.010.021) (13.204.843)
23 12.555.838 8.565.828
5.21 (666.449) 565437
5.21 381503 68.982
52.293.936 30.527.351

22 (1.984.063) (16.680.095)
(1.894.037) (157.700)

24 {1.283.956) 3.224.210
21 {179.732) (1600.425)
54.561.969 28.575.788

7 (59.853.379) 6.350.418
35 8.204.289 {16.239.764)
3.6,17 (24.461.737) 3.036.629
3.5 64.796.096 25.901
8 (4.833.894) (6.449.229)

8 987.069 (1.240.716)
61517 1.194.861 1.156.280
(13.966.695) (13.360471)

15 (3.460.266) (3.516.499)
13 (25.651) (433.810)
24 3.030.849 (5.092.239)
54.834.238 46.181.721

The accompanying noles from an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDEDN 31 DECEMBER 201

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL")

B. Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Proceeds From Acquisition of Subsidiary
which Control is Obtained
Gain on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment
and Intangible Assets
Gain on Sale of Property. Plant and Equipment
and Intangible Assels
Payments for Acquisition of Propenty, Plant and Equipment
and Intabgible Assels
Payments for Acquisition of Property, Plant and Equipment
Payments for Acquisition of Intangibie Assets
Cash Outflow for Aquisition of Shares in Other Entities or
Shares in Funds or Debt Instruments
Interest Received

C. Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Proceeds From Borrowings
Cash Inflow From Borrowings
Cash Outflow of Borrowings
Cash Outflows on Repavment of Borrowings
Cash Inflow / {Outflow) from Derivative Instruments
Interest Paid
Interest Received
Dividends Paid

Increase / (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Before the Effect of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes (A+B+C)
D. Effects of Foreign Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash

Equivalents
Net (Decrease) / Increase on Cash and Cash Equivalents
(A+B+C+D)
E. Cash and Cash Equivalents at the Begining of the Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year (A+B+C+D+E)

7

Current Prior

Period Period

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December

Notes 07 2016
(592.733) 992211

92! 439.409 215622
9 (22.721.422) (16.906.139)
10 (7.099.213) (6.826.807)
22,27 91.752990 (120.501.736)
22 18.193.267 12.238.972
79972298  (130.787.877)

83.576.639 162.546.988
(138.611.954) (108.470.681)

310613 (207.564)

(10.755.413) (7.668.177)

23 1.384.397 965.871
- (2.057.907)

(64.095.718) 45.108.530

70.710.818 (39.497.626)

9.557.965 10.253.835

80.268.783 (29.243.791)

k1] 71.070.817 1090.314.608
3 151.339.600 71.070.817

The accompanying notes from an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL™))

ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS OF THE GROUP

Klimasan Klima Sanayi ve Ticaret A.S. (the “Company”) and its subsidiary operate in the production and
sales of industrial type coolers and freezers both in foreign and domestic markets. The main product range
items of the Group are coolers of soft drinks, beer and beverages, and fridges for frozen foods and ice
cream. The Company was established on 7 January 1969 in izmir and current headquarters is located in
Manisa.

The Company is registered in Turkey. The address of its registered office is Manisa OSB I. Kisim
Kegilikdy OSB Mh. Cumhuriyet Cad. No: 1 45030 Yunusemre, Manisa.

The immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group is Metalfrio Solutions Sogutma Sanayi
ve Ticaret A.S.. The ultimate shareholder of the Group is Metalfrio Solutions S.A.. The Company is
registered to Capital Markets Board (“CMB™) and its shares are traded on Istanbul Stock Exchange A.S.
(“ISE™) since 1997. As at 31 December 2017, 39% portion of its shares is listed in ISE.

As of 31 December 2017, the average personnel number of the Group is 1.345 (2016:1.070).

The Company's Subsidiaries

The Company acquired 100% of *‘Metalfrio Solutions Poland Spolka z ograniczona odpowiedzialnoscia’
(“Metalfrio Solutions Poland SP. Z.0.0.") as of | April 2016 which perform sale and marketing of
Klimasan's products in Poland from its ultimate shareholder Metalfrio Solutions Sofutma Sanayi ve
Ticaret A.S. for a consideration of EUR 176.807 (TL 567.374) considering the organizational efficiencies.

As per the board decision dated 20 February 2017, Metalfrio West Africa Ltd. was established with a
capital of USD 10.000 and a participation of 97% in order to manage sales, marketing, and logistics
operations in Nigeria and to improve the potential sales opportunities in West Africa. The Company
stipulated NGN 3.100.000 of total NGN 3.007.000 (TL 36.107) capital of Metalfrio West Africa.

The Company's affiliate, Metalfrio West Africa Ltd., has acquired the 90% of the shares of Sabcool Lid., a
Nigerian company, with a cost of NGN 48 million (approximately USD 145.000). The shares were
acquired in exchange of trade receivables instead of cash.

Approval of financial statements

Board of Directors has approved the consolidaled financial statements and delegated authority for
publishing it on 5 March 2018. General Assembly has the authority to modify the consolidated financial
statements.
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL")}

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The accompanying financial statements are prepared in accordance with the requirements of Capital
Markets Board (“CMB”) Communiqué Serial II, No: 14.1 “Basis of Financial Reporting in Capital
Markets”, which were published in the Official Gazette No:28676 on 13 June 2013. The accompanying
financial statements are prepared based on the Turkish Accounting Standards and interpretations (“TAS")
that have been put into effect by the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority
{“POA™) under Article 5 of the Communiqué.

The financial statements and disclosures have been prepared in accordance with the resolution of POA
dated 7 June 2013 about the “iliustrations of financial statements and application guidance”.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration
given in exchange for assets.

Currency Used

The individual financial statements of the Group are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). The results and financial position of
each entily are expressed in TL, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation
currency for the financial statements.

Preparation of Financial Statements in Hyperinflationary Economies

In accordance with the communique issued by CMB that Companies operates in Turkey and prepare their
financial statements applying Turkish Accounting Standards, it is decided not to apply inflation accounting
from | January 2005 which is published on 17 March 2005 numbered 11/367. Accordingly, as of | January
2005 No: 29 *Financial reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies™ (“TAS 29") was not applied.

Comparative Information and Restatement of Prior Period Financial Statements

Consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared comparatively with the prior year in
order to give information about financial position and performance trends. Comparative data are re-
classified whenever required and material differences are disclosed in order to comply with the presentation
of the current period financial statements. In the current period, the Group has not made any
reclassifications to the previous period financial statements.
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAY! VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

{All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL™}}

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Basis of Preparation (cont’d)

Basis of Consolidation

Details of the Group's subsidiary as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Group's share in capital and

voting rights ratio (%)
Location of Establishment and Functional 31 December 31 December
Subsidiaries Operation Cutrency 2017 2016
Metalfrio Solutions o o
Poland SP. 7 o.0. Poland Euro 100% 100%
Metalfrio West Africa Lid. Nigeria US Dollar 97% -
Sabcool Ltd. Nigeria US Dollar 8§7.3% -

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements which are controlled by the
Group and its subsidiary. Control is achieved when the Company:

e has power over of the invested company or asset,
e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
e has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary, Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is attributed to the owners
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

[f necessary, adjustments were made on the financial statements of the subsidiary to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies,

All intercompany assets and liabilities, equity balances, income and expenses and all cash flow transaction
between the related parties are eliminated in consolidation.
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYL VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All ampunts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™))

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Basis of Preparation (cont’d)

Basis of Consolidation {cont’d)

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiary

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiary that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary is accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any
difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognized directly in equitly and attributed to owners of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss and is calculated
as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounled for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another
category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable TAS). The fair value of any investment retained in
the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for
subsequent accounting under TAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Combinations of entities or businesses under contmon control

Business combinations arising from transfers of interests in entities that are under the control of the
shareholder that controls the Group are excluded from the scope of TFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
(“TFRS 3”). In business combinations under common control, assets and liabilities subject to business
combination are accounted for at their carrying value in consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the bulletin issued by the POA on 21 July 2013. Statements of profit or loss are consolidated starting
from the year that the comparative financial statements are presented and financial statements of previous
financial years are restated. Any positive or negative goodwill arising from such business combinations is
not recognized in the consolidated financial statements. The residual balance is calculated by netting off
investment in subsidiary and the share acquired in subsidiary’s equity accounted for as “Effect of Business
Combinations Involving Entities under Common Control” within equity.

The Company is acquired 100% of Metalfrio Solutions Poland SP. Z.0.0. which sales and marketing of
Klimasan’s products in Poland firm its ultimate shareholder Metalfrio Solutions Sogutma Sanayi ve Ticaret
A.$. for a consideration of EUR 176.807 (TL 567.374) considering the organizational efficiencies. This
acquisition is considered within the scope of business combinations involving entities under common
control but since the acquired company’s financial impact to the acquiree’s financial statements is not
significant the previous year financial statements is not restated and the difference between the Company’s
share in the subsidiary’s equity and the total consideration amounting to TL 585.274 is recognized directly
under equity.
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™))

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Changes in Accounting Policies

Significant changes in accounting policies are applied retrospectively and prior period consolidated
financial statements are restated. There has been no significant changes in the accounting policies of the
Company in the current year.

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

If the application of changes to the accounting estimates affects the financial results of a specific year, the
accounting estimate change is applied in that specific year, if they affect the financial results of current and
following years; the accounting policy estimate is applied prospectively in the year in which such change is
made. The Group did not have any major changes in the accounting estimates during the current period.

Identified significant accounting errors are applied retrospectively and the previous year’s financial
statements are restated accordingly.

New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standards

a) Amendments to TFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

Amendments to TAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses '
Amendments to TAS 7 Disclosure Imtiative '

Annual Improvements to TFRS

Standards 2014-2016 Cycle TFRS 12!

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017,

Amendments toe TAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

This amendment clarifies the aspects of accounting for the deferred tax regarding the debt instruments
measured at fair value.

The adoption of this amendment does not have any effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.
Amendments to TAS 7 Disclosure Inutiative

These amendments require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.

The Group’s liabilities arising from financing activities consist of borrowings and certain other financial
liabilities. A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances of these items is provided in Note 27.
Consistent with the transition provisions of the amendments, the Group has not disclosed comparative
information for the prior period. Apart from the additional disclosure in Note 27, the application of these
amendments has had no impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to TFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

TFRS 12: TERS 12 states that an entity need not provide summarized financial information for interests in
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures that are classified (or included in a disposal group that is
classified) as held for sale. The amendments clarify that this is the only concession from the disclosure
requirements of TFRS 12 for such interests.
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KLIMASAN KLiMA SANAY1 VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amoums expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™)

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standards (cont’d)

a) Amendments to TFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year (cont’d)

Annual Improvements to TFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle (cont’d)

The application of these amendments has had no effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
none of the Group’s interests in these entities are classified, or included in a disposal group that is
classified, as held for sale.

b) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not vet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised TAS that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments '

TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers '

Amendments to TFRS 10 and TAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets berween an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

Amendments to TFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment
Transactions '

TFRS Interpretations 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’

Amendments to TAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property '

Annual Improvements to TFRS

Standards 20142016 Cycle TERS 1/, T4S 28!

Amendments to TAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures *

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2018.
2Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2019.

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments

TFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets / Habilities and for derecognition and for general hedge accounting.

Key requirements of TFRS 9:

e all recognized financial assets that are within the scope of TFRS 9 are required to be subsequently
measured at amortized cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured
at amortized cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are generally measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value at the
end of subsequent accounting periods.
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

{All amounts expressed in Turkish Liga (“TL"}

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont*d)
New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standards (cont’d)

b) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not vet effective (cont’d)

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont’d)

» in addition, under TFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognized by an acquirer in a business combination) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognized in profit or loss.

¢ with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss,
TFRS 9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to
changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of such changes in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under TAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair
value of the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or
loss.

e in relation to the impairment of financial assets, TFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as
opposed to an incurred credit loss model under TAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an
entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized.

The new general hedge accounting requirements retain the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in TAS 39. Under TFRS 9, preater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the types of instruments that qualify for
hedging instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial items that are eligible for hedge
accounting. In addition, the effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with the principle of an
‘economic relationship®, Retrospective assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk management activities have also been introduced.

Based on an analysis of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 December 2017 on the
basis of the facts and circumstances that exist at that date, the directors of the Company have assessed the
impact of TFRS 9 10 the Group’s consolidated financial statements as follows:

Classification and measurement

Bills of exchange and debentures classified as held-to-maturity investments and loans carried at amortized
cost as disclosed in (Note 5) and other receivables (Note 6): These are held within a business model whose
objective is to collect the contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding. Accordingly, these financial assets will continue to be subsequently measured at
amortized cost upon the application of TFRS 9.

13



24

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(ANl amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL"))
BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standards (cont’d)

b) New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective (cont’d)

TFRS 9 Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Impairment

Financial assets measured at amortized cost will be subject to the impairment provisions of TFRS 9. The
Group expects to apply the simplified approach to recognize lifetime expected credit losses for its trade
receivables, finance lease receivables and amounts due from customer under construction contracts as
required or permitted by TFRS 9.

Procedures regarding the effects of the aforementioned amendment on Group's financial position and
performance are in process.

TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

TFRS 135 establishes a single comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for revenue arising
from contracts with customers. TFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
TAS 18 Revenue, TAS 1|1 Construction Contracts and the related Interpretations when it becomes
effective.

The core principle of TFRS 15 is that an entity should recognize revenue to depict the transfer of promised
goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects 1o be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step approach to
revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s} with a customer

Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as} the entity satisfies a performance obligation

Under TFRS 15, an entity recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
‘control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

Far more prescriptive guidance has been added in TFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore,
extensive disclosures are required by TFRS 15.

Clarifications to [FRS 15 in relation to the identification of performance obligations, principal versus agent
considerations, as well as licensing application guidance were issued.

The Group recognizes revenue from the following major sources:

¢ Sale of industrial type cooler and freezers
e Warranties and after-sale services for products sold

e Sales of other materials, spare parts and trade goods
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KLIMASAN KLiMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Al amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™))
BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (cont’d)
b} New and revised TFRSs in issue but not vet effective (cont’d)
TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (cont’d}

Regarding the sales of industrial type refrigerators and freezers, and sales of other materials, spare parts and
trade goods, revenue will be recognized for each of these performance obligations when control over the
corresponding goods and services is transferred to the customer. This is similar to the current identification
of separate revenue components under TAS 18.

The sales-related warranties cannot be purchased separately and they serve as an assurance that the
products sold comply with agreed-upon specifications. Accordingly, the Group will continue to account for
the warranty in accordance with TAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
consistent with its current accounting treatment.

Apart from providing more extensive disclosures on the Group’s revenue transactions, the directors do not
anticipate that the application of TFRS 15 will have a significant impact on the financial position and/or
financial performance of the Group.

Amendments to TFRS 10 and TAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to IFRS 10 and [AS 28 deal with situations where there is a sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its associate or joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or
losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that does nol contain a business in a transaction
with an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method, are recognised in the
parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the remeasurement of investments retained in any
former subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity
method) to fair value are recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in the new associate or joint venture.

Amendments to TFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-Based Payment Transactions
The amendments clarify the standard in respect of the share-based payment arrangement has a ‘net
settlement feature’, such an arrangement should be classified as equity-settled in its entirety, provided that
the share-based payment would have been classified as equity-settled had it not included the net settlement
feature.
TFRS Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration
The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions where:

There is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency;

The entity recognizes a prepayment asset or a deferred income liability in respect of that consideration,

in advance of the recognition of the related asset, expense or income; and
¢  The prepayment asset or deferred income liability is non-monetary.

15
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira {"TL"})

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

New and Revised Turkish Accounting Standards (cont’d)

b)

New and revised TFRSs in issue but not yet effective (cont’d)

TFRS Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration {cont’d)

The Interpretations Committee came up with the following conclusion:

For the purpose of determining the exchange rate, the date of the transaction is the date of initial
recognition of the non-monetary prepayment asset or deferred income liability.

If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, a date of transaction is established for each
payment or receipt.

Amendments to TAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments to TAS 40:

Amends paragraph 57 to state that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, investment property
when, and only when, there is evidence of a change in use. A change of use occurs if property meets,
or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property. A change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property by itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use.

The list of examples of evidence in paragraph 57(a) — (d) is now presented as a non-exhaustive list of
examples instead of the previous exhaustive list.

Annual Improvements te TFRS Standards 2014-2016 Cycle

TFRS 1: Deletes the short-term exemptions in paragraphs E3-E7 of TFRS 1, because they have now
served their intended purpose.

TAS 28: Clarifies that the election to measure at fair value through profit or loss an investment in an
associale or a joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital organisation, or other
qualifying entity, is available for each investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-by-
investment basis, upon initial recognition.

Amendments to TAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

This amendment clarifies that an entity applies TFRS 9 Financial Instruments to long-term interests in an
associate or joint venture that form part of the net investment in the associate or joint venture but to which
the equity method is not applied.

The Group evaluates the effects of these standards, amendments and improvements, apart from the effects
of TFRS 15 and TFRS 9 as explained above, on the consclidated financial statements.
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(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"))

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont'd)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Related Parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements
(referred to as the 'reporting entity").

a)

b)

A person or a close member of that person's family is related to a reporting entity if that person:

(i} has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

(ii) has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.

An entity is related to a reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(i1} One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

{v) The entity is a post-employment defined benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a
plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to the reporting entity.

{vi) The entity is contrelled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a) (i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services, or obligations between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

17
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont*d)

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for
estimated or realized customer returns, discounts, commissions, rebates, and taxes related to sales.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which
time all the following conditions are satisfied:

s The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

s The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

s The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;
¢ [t is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; and
s The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably.

Dividend and interest income:

Dividend income from investments is recognized when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow
to the Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and nel realizable value. Costs, including an appropriate portion
of fixed and variable overhead expenses, are assigned to inventories held by the method most appropriate
to the particular class of inventory, with the majority being valued on a weighted average basis. Net
realizable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale. When the net realizable value of inventory is less than cost, the inventory is
written down to the net realizable value and the expense is included in statement of profit and loss in the
period the write-down or loss occurred. When the circumstances that previously caused inventortes to be
written down below cost no longer exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realizable
value because of changed economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed. The reversal
amount is limited to the amount of the original write-down.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Land is not depreciated and carried at cost less accumulated impairment.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are carried at
cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees. Borrowings costs are all
capitalized to the extent that relates to qualifying assets. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of
these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets, other than freehold land and
properties under construction, less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of
the lease term, assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal
or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assels acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Property, Plant and Equipment {cont’d)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognized if, and only if, all of the following have been demonstrated:

« the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

¢  how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;

e the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

¢ the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development

The amount initially recognized for internally-generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure
incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognition criteria listed above. Where no
internally-generated intangible asset can be recognized, development expenditure is recognized in profit or
loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated intangible assets are reported at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets thal
are acquired separately.

Computer software

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring
to use the specific softiware. These costs are amortized over their estimated useful lives.

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense
as incurred.

Computer software development costs recognized as assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Property, Plant and Equipment (cont’d)

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from
use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognized in profit
or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognized separately from goodwill are initially
recognized at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination are reported at cost
less accumulated amortization and accurmulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

If the recoverable amount of an assel {or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

When the Group borrows funds specifically for the purpose of the qualifying assets, the amount of
borrowing costs eligible for capitalization is the actual borrowing costs incurred on that borrowing during
the period less any investment income on the temporary investment of those borrowings. General
borrowings of the Group are capitalized to the applicable qualifying assets based on a capitalization rate.
The capitalization rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
entity that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Financial Instruments

Financial assels

Financial assets are classified into the following specified categories: financial assets as ‘at fair value
through profit or loss” (FVTPL), ‘held-to-maturity investments’, ‘available-for-sale’ {AFS) financial assets
and ‘loans and receivables’. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets
and is determined at the time of initial recognition. Investments are recognized and derecognized on a trade
date where the purchase or sale of an investments under a contract whose terms require delivery of the
investment within the timeframe established by the market concemned, and are initially measured at fair
value, net of transaction costs except for those financial assets classified as at fair value through profit or
loss, which are initially measured at fair value

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is
classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short-term. Derivatives are
also categorized as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. The related financial assets are
carried at fair value and the resulting gains and losses are recognized in the profit or loss table.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Finansal varliklar (cont’d)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity dates that the Group has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity. Subsequent to
initial recognition, held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method less any impairment.

Available-for-sale financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as AFS or are not classified as (a) loans
and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity investments or (¢) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Changes in the carrying amount of AFS monetary financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency
rates, interest income calculated using the effective interest method and dividends on AFS equity
investments are recognized in profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale
financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss.

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is
determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of the reporting
period. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are recognized in profit or loss are determined based on
the amortized cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

AFS equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such
unquoled equity investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end of each
reporting period.

23



25

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAY!1 VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL"))

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Financial assets (cont’d)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables, bank balances
and cash, and others) are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment. Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables when the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments which their maturities are 3 months or less from date of acquisition and that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. The cash
and cash equivalents are classified under the category of “Loans and Receivables.”

Recognition and derecognition of financial assets

The Group recognizes financial assets or liabilities in the event of being a party of an agreement of
financial instrument. The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received. The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the Group’s obligations are
discharged, cancelled or they expire.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Non-derivative financial instruments which are not
recognized or designated as financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognized initially
at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield
basis.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Financial Instruments (cont’d)

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group enters futures agreements in foreign exchange markets. As the futures agreements that are
entered in order to protect from risk according to the Group's risk management policies do not meet the
criterion set by TAS 39 (Valuation of Financial Instruments) for hedge accounting, they are considered
trading derivative transactions in financial tables. Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the
date the derivative conlracts are entered into and are subsequently premeasured to their fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Increase and decrease in fair values of derivative instruments that do not meet the
criterion for hedge accounting are directly associated with profit or loss statement.

If possible, fair values are determined by current prices in active markets, else discounted cash flows or
option pricing models are used as appropriate. Derivatives with a positive fair value are assets, while
derivatives with a negative fair value are liabilities in the balance sheet.

Business Combinations

The acquisition of subsidiary and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the
sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquire and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquire. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognized at their
fair value, except that:

s Deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognized and measured in accordance with TAS 12 fncome Taxes and TAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

s  Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquire or share-
based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements
of the acquire are measured in accordance with TFRS 2 Share-based Payment at the acquisition date;
and

s Assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with TFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that Standard.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Business Combinations (cont’d)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquire, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the
acquire (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquire and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire
{if any), the excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the acquiree's identifiable
net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of
non-controlling interests are measured at fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
TAS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes assets or liabilities
resulting from a conlingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its
acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the ‘measurement
period’ (which cannot exceed | year from the acquisition date} about facts and circumstances that existed at
the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify
as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. The fair values of other contingent consideration is remeasured
and the corresponding gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held equity interest in the
acquire is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control) and
the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in profit or loss, Amounts arising from interests in the
acquire prior 1o the acquisition date that have previously been recognized in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognized, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognized at that date.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition of
the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units
(or groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognized directly in profit
or loss in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. An impairment loss recognized for goodwill is not
reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

The Group's policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate is described under Note 3.

Effect of Exchange Differences:

Foreign Currency Balances and Transactions

The individual financial statements of each Group entity are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (its functional currency). Metalfrioc Solutions Poland
SP. Z.o.0. uses Euro as its functional currency, Metalfrio West Africa Ltd. and Sabcool Ltd. use Nigerian
Naira (NGN) as their functional currency. The results and financial position of each entity are expressed in
TL, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions in currencies other than TL
(foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the
end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Effect of Exchange Differences (cont’d)

Foreign Currency Balances and Transactions (cont’d)

Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

¢  Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those assets where they are regarded as an adjustment
to interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

s  Exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign currency risks {see
below for hedging accounting policies); and

o  Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur, which form part of the net investment in a foreign
operation, and which are recognized in the foreign currency translation reserve and recognized in
profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

Financial Statements of Subsidiaries and Joint Ventures Operaitng in Abroad

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and habilities of the Group's
foreign operations are translated into TL using exchange rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuated significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are
used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity (attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share disclosed in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income are determined by
dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of shares that have been outstanding during the related
period.

In Turkey, companies can increase their share capital by making a pro-rata distribution of shares (“bonus
shares™) to existing shareholders from retained earnings on equity items. Such kind of bonus shares are taken
into consideration in the computation of earnings per share as issued share certificates. For the purpose of
eamings per share computations, the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period has
been adjusted in respect of bonus shares issues without a corresponding change in resources, by giving them
retroactive effect for the year in which they were issued and each earlier year.

Events After the Reporting Period
Events afier the reporting period are those events that occur between the balance sheet date and the date
when the financial statements are authorized for issue, even if they occur after an announcement related

with the profit for the year or public disclosure of other selected financial information.

The Group adjusts the amounts recognized in its financial statements if adjusting events occur after the
reporting date.
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Government Grants and Incentives

Government incentives are not recognized unless there is reasonable assurance that the Group fulfill the
necessary conditions and incentive will be obtained.

CGovernment incentives are recognized systematically in profit or loss in the periods the expenses covered
by the incentive is recognized. Government incentives, which are a financing instrument, should be
recognized as unearned income in the statement of financial position (balance sheet) rather than being
recognized in profit or loss in order to clarify the expenditure item that is financed and should be
systematically reflected in profit or loss during the economic life of the related assets.

Government incentives granted in order to provide emergency financial support without incurring costs or
expenses previously incurred or recognized in the future are recognized in profit or loss when they become
recoverable.

The benefit of the loan, which is taken from the government at a lower rate than the market interest rate, is
considered as state incentive. The benefit generated by the lower interest rate is measured as the difference
between the gain on the initial book value of the loan.

Provisions, Contingent Assets and Liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting peried, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received
and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Warranties

At the date of sale, provisions related to Group’s warranty costs are recognized according to the estimates
of the management about the expenses to be incurred.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (cont’d)
Taxation and Deferred Income Tax

Turkish Tax Legislation does not permit a parent group and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax return.
Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, have
been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

Income tax expense is the total of current tax and deferred tax expense.
Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before
tax’ as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss because of items of income or expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability or asset is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases which are used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the 1axable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investmenis in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences assoctated with such
investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the pericod in
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities at the reporting date.
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BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Summary of Significant Accounting Palicies (cont’d)

Taxation and Deferred Income Tax (cont’d)

Deferred tax (cont'd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognized as in profil or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax
are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Employee Benefits
Retirement benefits:

Under Turkish law and union agreements, lump sum payments are made to employees retiring or
involuntarily leaving the Group. Such payments are considered as being part of defined retirement benefit
plan as per TAS 19 (Revised) Employee Benefits (*TAS 197).

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position represents
the present value of the defined benefit obligation. The actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other

comprehensive income.

Statement of Cash Flows

In the statement of cash flows, cash flows are classified according to operating, investing and financing
activities,

Share Capital and Dividends

Common shares are classified as equity. Dividends on common shares are recognized in equity in the
period in which they are approved and declared.

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s accounting policies

In the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies, which are described in Note 2.5, management has
made the following judgments that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial
statements:
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2.6

KLIMASAN KLiMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

{All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL"))

BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (cont’d)

Critical Accounting Judgments and Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty (cont’d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment and scrap value

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of its property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting
period. The Group takes into consideration the intended use of the property, plant and equipment, the
advancement in technology related to the particular type of property, plant and equipment as well as other
factors that may require management to extend or shorten the useful lives and the assets’ related depreciation.

Warranty provision

Amounts recorded as provision are calculated according to the estimates about the expenses to be incurred
considering risks and uncertainties about the liability. In this context, the Group reserves provisions for repair
and maintenance expenses for the goods produced and sold, authorized service labor and part costs in the scope
of warranty without payments by the customer, first maintenance costs undertaken by the Group in the light of
estimates from prior data.

Provision for doubtful trade receivables

The Group reviews receivable for possible impairment. Provision for doubtful receivables is determined based
on management’s discretion according to volume of trade receivable, past experience, and general economic
conditions. As 31 December 2017, the Group's doubtful trade receivables praovision is TL 13.478.602 in the
statement of financial position {31 December 2016: TL 11.476.342}.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liability or assel is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases which are used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilized. If based on the weight of all available evidence, it is the Group’s belief that taxable profit will
not be available sufficient to utilize some portion of these deferred tax assets, then some portion of or all of
the deferred tax assets are not recognized. If future results of operations exceed the Group’s current
expectations, the existing unrecognized deferred tax assets may be recognized, resulting in future tax
benefits.

Income Tax
The Group operates in a variety of tax jurisdictions and is liable to tax legislation and tax laws that apply in
these countries. Significant estimates are used in determining the Group's income tax provision. Upon the final

tax oulcomes, the amounts actualised may differ from those anticipated and hence an amendment to the income
tax provision recorded as of the balance sheet date, may be necessary.
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Al amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™})

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Subsidiaries acquired

As per the board decision dated 20 February 2017, Metalfrio West Africa Ltd. was established with a
capital of USD 10.000 and a participation of 97% in order to manage sales, marketing, and logistics
operations in Nigeria and to improve the potential sales opportunities in West Africa. The Company
stipulated NGN 3.100.000 of total NGN 3.007.000 (TL 36.107) capital of Metalfrio West Africa.

The Company's affiliate, Metalfrio West Africa Ltd., has acquired the 90% of the shares of Sabcool Ltd.,
a Nigerian company, with a cost of NGN 48 million (approximately USD 145.000). The shares were

acquired in exchange of trade receivables instead of cash.

Proportion of

Date of Interest  Consideration
Principal Activity Acquisition  Acquired {%) Transferred
Industrial Type Cooler and 28 December
Sabcool Lid. Freezer Sales 2017 90 592.640

592.640

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed at acquisition date

Sabcool Ltd.

Current Asset 11.528.669
Trade Receivables 2.189.946
Trade Receivables from Related Parties 2.083.629
Trade Receivables from Third Parties 106.317
Other Receivables 129.957
Other Receivables from Third Parties 129.957
Other Current Assets 9.208.766
Non-Current Assets 129.491
Property, Plant and Equipment 129.491
Short - term Liabilities 11.425.955
Trade Payables 11.425.955
Trade Payables to Related Parties 9.342.326
Trade Payables 1o Third Parties 2.083.629
232.205
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KLIMASAN KLiMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.§. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™)}

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (cont’d)
Subsidiaries acquired {cont’d)
Goodwill arising on acquisition

Goodwill arose from the acquisition of Sabcool Ltd. because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies, revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the subsidiary acquired. These benefits are not recognized separately from
goodwill because they do not meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.

Sabcool Ltd.
Consideration transferred 592.640
Less: Fair value of identifiable
net asset acquired (90%) (208.985)
Goodwill 383.655
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAY1 VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"))

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Group, have been
eliminated during consolidation and are not disclosed in this note.

Trade receivables from related parties are mainly due from sale of goods and materials made in US Dollar
and Euro and maturities are approximate 3-6 months. The receivables are unsecured in nature and bear no

interest.

Trade payables to related parties are mainly due to purchases of goods and services and maturity are

approximate 1-3 months.

Balances between related parties in 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are disclosed below:

31 December 2017

Receivables Payables

Trade Non-trade Trade

LLC Klimasan Ukraine 4979218 - -

000 Metalfrio Solutions Russia 879.380 - -

P.T. Metalfrio Solutions Indonesia 661.688 253.919 18.909

Metalfrio Solutions S.A. Brazil - - -
Metalfrio Solutions Sogutma Sanayi

ve Ticaret A.S. - 33.213.365 12.959

Metalfrio Solutions A/S Denmark - - 22.961

Metalfrio Solutions Mexico S.A.Dec.V. 283.225 - -

Rome Investment Management LTD. - - 103.93%

6.803.511 33.467.284 158.768

31 December 2016
Receivables Payables

Trade Non-trade Trade

P.T. Metalfrio Solutions Indonesia 3.807.816 - -

LLC Klimasan Ukraine 1.580.397 - -

000 Metalfrio Solutions Russia 806.130 - -
Metalfrio Solutions Sogutma Sanayi

ve Ticaret A.S. - 18.211.999 78.568

Metalfrio Solutions Mexico S.A.Dec.V. 55.976 - -

Metalfrio Solutions S.A. Brazil 15.643 - -

Metalfrio Solutions A/S Denmark - - 63.642

6.265.962 18.211.999 142.210
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™))

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (cont’d)

Non-trade Transactions:

Non-trade receivables from related parties arise from financial transactions. For non-trade receivables
related parties, effective market interest rate is used. The interest rate applied in 2017 is 4.70-5.50%

(2016: 5%).

Details of loans to related parties as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are disclosed below:

31 December 2017

Original Interest

Currency Maturity Rate Short-term Debt
Loans provided to related partics:
Moctalfrio Solutions Sogutma ve Ticarct A $. Euro 27 February 2018 4,7% 3.000.000
Mectalfrio Solutions Sogutma ve Ticaret A.S. US Dollar 30 Junc 2018 5.0% 5.000.000
P.T. Metalfrio Solutions Indoncesia US Dollar 13 February 2018 5,5% 17.000
P.T. Mctalfrio Solutions [ndoncsia US Dollar 03 March 2018 5.5% 50,000

31 December 2016

Original Interest

Currency Maturity Ratc Short-term Debt
Loans provided to rclated partics:
Mctalfrio Solutions Sogutma ve Ticarct A.S. US Dollar 30 Junc 2018 5,0% 5.000.000

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel consists of members of Board of Directors and members of Executive Board.
Compensation to key management include benefits such as salaries, bonus, health insurance and
transportation. Compensation to key management personnel during the year are disclosed below:

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
Salaries and other short-term benefits 5.549.443 5.000.972
5.549.443 5.000.972
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a)

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amouns expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL"))

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES
Trade Receivables

The details of the Group’s trade receivables as of 31 December 2017 and 3| December 2016 are as
follows:

31 December 31 December

Short-term Trade Receivables 2017 2016
Trade receivables 67.772.350 76.406.065
Trade receivables from related parties {Note 4} 6.803.511 6.265.962
Notes receivable 15.798.939 11.716.178
Allowance on doubtful receivables (-) (13.478.602) (11.476.342)
Unaccrued finance expense on trade receivables (-) (834.370) (640.692)
Unaccrued finance expense on notes receivable (-) {400.332) (207.331)
75.661.496 82.063.840

The average credit period on sales of goods is 67 days (31 December 2016: 76 days).

The details of the Group's long-term trade receivables as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016
are as follows:

31 December 31 December

Long-term Trade Receivables 2017 2016
Notes receivable - 46.000
Unaccrued finance expense on notes receivable (-) - (5.176)
- 40.824

Explanations about the nature and level of foreign currency risks related to the Group’s trade receivables
are provided in Note 28.

Allowances for doubtful receivables are recognized against trade receivables based on estimated
irrecoverable amounts determined by reference to past default experience of the counterparty.

Movements on the Group’s provision for allowance for doubtful receivables as of 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016 are as follows:

Movement of allowance for doubtful receivables 2017 2016
Balance at 1 January (11.476.342) (9.348.760)
Charge for the period (47.322) (634.773)
Foreign currency exchange differences (2.309.414) (1.492.809)
Amounts recovered during the year 354.476 -
Balance at 31 December {13.478.602) {11.476.342)
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a)

KLIMASAN KLiMA SANAY{ VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

{All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL"}}

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)

Trade Payables

The details of the Group’s trade payables as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

31 December

31 December

Short-term Trade Payables 2017 2016
Trade payables 136.152.310 59.946.817
Trade payables to related parties (Note 4) 158.768 142.210
Unaccrued finance income for trade payables (-) (790.163) (123.714})

135.520.915 59.965.313

Explanations about the nature and level of foreign currency risks related to the Group’s trade payables are

provided in Note 28.
The average credit period on trade payables is 103 days (31 December 2016: 76 days).
OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Other Receivables

The details of the Group's other short and long-term receivables as of 31 December 2017 and

31 December 2016 are as follows:

31 December

31 December

Other Short-term Receivables 2017 2016
Receivables from related parties (Note 4) 33.467.284 18.211.999
Receivables from customs 1.263.916 812.631
Receivables from personnel 421.431 289.745
Other receivables 380.314 317.586
35.532.945 19.631.961

31 December 31 December

Other Long-term Receivables 2017 2016
Guarantee and deposits given 12.564 12.564
12.564 12.564
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b)

KLIMASAN KLIiMA SANAYi VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2417

(A1l amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™))
OTHER RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES (cont’d)
Other Payables

The details of the Group's other short-term payables as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as
follows:

31 December 31 December

Other Short-term Payables 2017 2016
Other liabilities 338.097 204.832
338.097 204.832

31 December 31 December

Other Long-term Payables 2017 2016
Guarantee and deposits received 28.845 28.845
28.845 28.845

INVENTORIES

The details of the inventories as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Raw materials 49.990.137 23.527.019
Finished goods 47.301.380 17.207.319
Work in progress 3.327.508 1.453.803
Other inventories 1.059.714 884.307
Trade goods 1.838.542 591.454
Allowance for impairment on inventory (-) (61.948) (617.370)
103.455.333 43.046.532

The cost of inventories recognized as expense and included in cost of sales amounted to TL 261.784.802
(31 December 2016: TL 205.154.976).

The allowance for impairment on inventories of the Group is regarding to obsolete, scraped or slow moving
items.

Movement of allowance for impairment on inventory 2017 2016
Balance at 1 January (617.370) (56.316)
(Charge) / reversal for the year, net 555.422 (561.054)
Balance at 31 December (61.948) (617.370)
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KLIMASAN KLiMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

{All amounts expressed in Turkish Lica (“TL™))

PREPAID EXPENSES AND DEFERRED INCOME

31 December

31 December

Short-term Prepaid Expenses 2017 2016
Advances given to suppliers 12,374,737 0.184.921
Prepaid expenses to customns 1.227.939 -
Business advances given 412.952 764.993
Short-term prepaid expenses 949.112 422.453

14.964.740 10.372.367

31 December

31 December

Long-term Prepaid Expenses 2017 2016
Advances given for fixed asset purchases 398.071 227.108
Long-term prepaid expenses 83.767 13.209

481.838 240.317

31 December

31 December

Short-term Deferred Income 2017 2016
Advances received 2.153.518 1.194.485
Deferred income 28.036 -

2.181.554 1.194.485

41




[44

(860°65H°SO1 1L 19107 J2quiada(] 1€) 0SSO0 LL1 1L ST juswudinba pue Apadold “Yyueld uo ssueansur Jo Junowe [e)o) Ay} */ [ 07 QW] [€ JOSY

‘JuawdojaAap pue yoseasas 01 ($$6'bE6°€ 1L 19107 Iquiada(]
L£) 01L'866°t 1L Pue sesuadxa aAnensiuIwpe o) (Z11°79¢ 1L 910T 12quasaq [€) 7LL'60s TL ‘sosuadxa unaxyrew o} (156°€9 T1 19107 J2quiadaq
—mv 190°2¢¢ 1L .ﬁ_Ow wﬁoow .wc 1503 0] PIIed0[[E sem sasuadxs uoneziouwe pue ﬂo_ﬁﬂmouhﬁuﬂ jo A.F‘.‘Nh.w—? qL 9102 1oquadag ~mv H6TLRSTS TL

SLI'STL99 1L1P6101 REG' 66T L0168 LER'SER'E tOL'E SEP'PITEE CRE'GLE' P 056'E5T £95°LEPT L16T 19qe30aQ | ¢ fo se anjes Furkue 1an
(IRR'+6R 09} - 91¢101) (TFLFLE) (1002101 (R§9°1) (6E09ZR'$F) (OFL 900 'E) ($PT F95) - L10T 13qua33Q 1€ jo se aoueieq Juisoly
S9UTLET - E - T - CHEILTT - - - sjesodsi(]
(£9L°$8T'9) - (LzeLs) (RITLYF) st CIT 1) - (Le10st's) {FR6' 1L} (SERsr) - 1ead sy Jo) 2oy
(€8 186'95) - (6R0°FT) g Lew ($912006) (859°1) (l6LT89°er)  {9SLpES'E) 00y R1£) - L10g Ltnuef | go st adueteq Jumsdey
WA PIRRWnISY
95007 LT 1LIY610 PrE O oFREIY LR SLO'PE 19¢°¢ LY 0606l CITEROR1 S61RIL £95°LEP T L10T 15quaaaq | { jo se aoueieq uisor)
($66'05¢E) (16t 81551} 9TLTIT - 6P L9 - CPRETOE] R6E09E - - sso1foud 1 UOTIIASUOD WOU) SID)SUES]
(106'§19°7) (15061} - - (ZTE'se) - (RES°LTE°TY N - - sjesodsig]
L6p'621 - - - LAL'STY HOL'E - - - - uomsinboe Aq pannbae sassy
rt o SA0ELTRI REQ16 SEFSSL £R1°698°1 - CLOELET 9EE 1T 799101 - suonIppy
6E0°9€L°L01 RISTRL 086'L6 FIF 59 108 P0F TL 259°| FROT191°69 RRE195°81 £E5°019 £9¢°LEP'T £107 Asenuey | Jo st 3ourjeq fuuadp
¥ ROy
1®10)] ssauoxd YT (TR E SMAIXEL SINYDA waudinba s3uip|ing SDUaACI | pUT]
Ut UonANISU)  ploydsed’) sqidum o pue umng pue Aunyaepy pue]

'SMO([0] SB ST /£ [T J2quIada(] | ¢ Jo se wawdinbs pue yue[d ‘Auadoid 10) Juswasow ay |

INTWAINOA ANV INVd ‘ALYAd0OUd

{(,7TL.,) &I ysPpn [ ut passadxa SIUNcWE |[v)

LI0Z d99WHDAA 1€ gIANT 9vdIA FHL 404

SINGWALVLS TVIONVNIA G41vVAITOSNOD JHL O.L SHLON

SAMMVIAISENS SLI ANV "S'V LTHVILL A IAVNVS V[T NVSVIN] T



134

959 PSL 0% RIS'TRLL 16%°ES Q6R0ELT 99 COF ¢ - £6C°808°1C cELIP051 CE1'THT £95°LE4°C 910T 3quasdg | ¢ Jo se anjes Bukued 1N
(E8E°186'95) - {6R0°pY) WIsLir) (591 T00 6} (RS9'1) (16LT59Er)  (9SLPESTE) 00y 31¢) - 9107 19quadaq] | ¢ Jo st asueqeq Jursa))
RTFIIE - - 995609 E T9R'90% - - - s[esodsiy
(69L PE1'S) - (©16'67) (088°9F) (08F'878) - (RET$TLD (65T PoP) (Zzoop) - Jeah oy 10y SBrey )
(THE9TES) - {oLl'vt) (rry 081 USTERLRY  (859°1) Sirvecory  (L15°0L0°€) (RLERLT) - 910z Lsenuer | o s soueieq Suiadg

L TR LT ) s
SE09EL'L01 RISTRLL 0R6'L6 rlt'859 108 P0F <1 8591 PRO1910°59 SRF 18681 £E5 019 T95°LEPT $10 22quaaaq 11 Jo st suepeq Turso))
- YR ¥ELE) - - 9sLL - RLSOLL'Y sol'ty e - ssauBord Ul UONINIISUOD Wty sUMsUTI]
$T9°'1Lr 1) - - - (1ze919) - (FDESR) - - - sjusodsiq)
61790691 PEOLOP LT 000'81 19088 cR0'ergl - PSyLov'Y fEE'et 3189 - SUoRIppY
£T5°10E°Ce YL 601 0R6°6L £59°6L% PEEPO1T1 w9l 956°LOL'RS 0o6°LES81 L91'c6$ £95°LEP'T 9107 Azenuer | Jo st souejeq Suwado
TEEA BT
e], sso1901d Swusacida] | s19sse SN SapPIA  usldmbs Fuping SIUPWSACIOW . PuT]
Ul UONNUISUO)  PlOYIsTaT] apqiduey 1) pum Sunatng pue AduryIepy put

ISMOJ[O) SE ST 97 JAquiada(] | ¢ jo se wawdinba pue juerd ‘Auadord 107 Juawaaow g j

(Pauod) INTWJINOI ANV INVTd ‘ALYIJOUd

(0T ®IT yspUn L ul passaudxs slunowe ||y)

L10T Y94dNd03d 1€ IANT ¥VIA FHL 404
SINTFWALVLS TVIONVNI4 4LVAITOSNOD dHL OL S310ON

SAMIVIAISANS SLI ANV '$'V LTUVILL A IAVNVS VIAITY NVSVINI T



10.

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

[All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"))

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (cont’d)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Useful Life
Land improvements 15 years
Buildings 40-50 years
Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
Vehicles 5 years
Furniture and fixtures 2-50 years
Other tangible assets 4-15 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movement for intangible assets as of 31 December 2017 is as follows:

Capitalized
research and
development

Construction

expenscs Rights in progress Total
Cost value
Opening balance as of 1 January 2017 29.121.017 3.275.162 1.040.094 33.436.273
Additions - 105.104 6.994.109 7.099.213
Disposals - (22.916) - (22.916)
Transfers from construction in progress 5.316.824 350995 (5.316.824) 350.995
Closing balance as of 31 December 2017 34.437.841 3.708.345 2.717.379 40.863.565
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance as of | January 2017 (15.240.602)  (2.939.934) - (18.180.536)
Charge for the year (4.472.723) (330.786) - (4.803.509)
Disposals - 6.875 - 6.875
Closing balance as of 31 December 2017 (19.713.325)  (3.263.845) - {22977.170)
Carrying value as of 31 December 2017 14.724.516 444.500 2.717.379 17.886.395

Construction in progress consists of development projects carried out in the Group's structure. When a
development project within the Group is complete and a determinable asset that provides economic

benefits, it is classified to intangible assets.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (cont’d)

The movement for intangible assets as of 31 December 2016 is as follows:

Capitalized
research and
development Construction
expenses Rights in progress Total
Cost value
Opening balance as of 1 January 2016 21.323.601 2.887.264 2.398.601 26.609.466
Additions - 387.898 6.438.909 6.826.807
Transfers from construction in progress 7.797.416 - (1.797.416) .
Closing balance as of 31 December 2016 29.121.017 3.275.162 1.040.094 33.436.273
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance as of 1 January 2016 (11.833.441) (2.773.972) - (14.607.413)
Charge for the year (3.407.161) (165.962) - (3.573.123)
Closing balance as of 31 December 2016 (15.240.602) (2.939.934) - (18.180.536)
Carrying value as of 31 December 2016 13.880.415 335.228 1.040.094 15.255.737

Useful lives of intangible assels are determined 5 years for capitalized development expenses and 3 years

for rights,

GOODWILL

Cost value

31 December
2017

31 December
2016

Opening balance

Additional amounts recognised from business
combinations occuring during the year

Closing balance

383.655

383.655
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GOVERNMENT GRANT AND INCENTIVES

Group has revised the incentive certificate that dated 15 May 2014 and numbered 114837 given by the
Ministry of Economy with the domestic list with an amount of TL 21.954.453 and export list with an
amount of USD 4.773.224 numbered C 114837. Expiry date of the incentive centificate is expanded to
30 August 2018.

Group has made an application to Ministry of Science, Industry and Technology to be a Research and
Development Center and the Group received the right on 27 August 2014,

Tax Law numbered 5520 dated 28 February 2009 and Law numbered 5838 was added by 32/A specified
scope of the article and the Ministry of Treasury and Economy of the investment incentives derived from
investments connected to document earnings partially or completely since the beginning of the accounting
period till the contribution amount discount Corporate Tax can be applied. In addition, according to the
Decree on State Aids for Investments no. 2012/3305, which was updated with the Council of Ministers
Decree No. 2017/9917 published in Official Gazette dated 22/02/2017 and numbered 29987, for the
investment expenditures realized between 1/1/2017 and 31/12/2017, the investment contribution rate used
in tax reduction incentive has been raised from 30% to 45%. Hence, the corporate tax reduction is applied
at a rate of a hundred percent and the rate to be applied to the profits from the investor's other activities in
the investment period of the investment contribution of the investor's contribution during the investment
period is applied at a rate of a hundred percent. As of the 4th temporary tax period of the year 2017, the
entity was not subject to the application of the discounted corporation tax since the temporary tax
assessment did not occur.

PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The details of the Group's other short-term provisions as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016
are as follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Warranty provisions (i) 3.226.783 2.357.549
Legal provisions (ii) 995.887 745.380
Other provisions 45.636 378.544
4.268.306 3.481.473

(1)  Warranty provisions represents the best estimation of the management for the current value of the
outflow of economic benefits regarding the guarantee program of domestic sales of the coolers the
Group produces and exports of water dispensers. The provision also includes the supply of spare
parts without charge according to agreements with foreign customers that is determined based on
the sales actualized at term end.

(i)) Legal provisions consist of ongoing business and trade lawsuits of the Group. Legal provision is
accounted in other operating expenses in statement of profit or loss. Based on the Group
management opinion, considering the legal opinion received, the outcome of the lawsuits will not
cause a significant loss in addition to the provision recognized as of 31 December 2017.
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PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (cont’d)

The details of the movement for warranty provision as of 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at | January 2.357.549 1.251.424
Charge for the year, net 869.234 1.106.125
Provision at 31 December 3.226.783 2.357.549

The movement for legal provision as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at | January 745.380 638.624
Payments {25.651) (433.810)
Charge for the year 276.158 540.566
Provision at 31 December 995.887 745.380

COMMITMENTS

Guarantees-Pledge-Mortgage (“GPM™)

The Group’s GPM position as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is as follows:

31 December 2017 TL Eguivalent Euro US Dollar TL
The total of GPM that are given

in the name of its own legal personality 185.057.683 38.988.767 1.917.270  1.772.155

- Guarantees 185.057.683 38.988.767 1.917.270  1.772.155

Total 185.057.683 38.988.767 1.917.270  1.772.155

31 December 2016 TL Equivalent Euro US Dollar TL
The total of GPM that are given

in the name of its own legal personality 228.342.207 60.018.308 1.045.000 2.002.722

- Guarantees 228.342.207 60.018.308 1.045.000  2.002.722

Total 228.342.207 60.018.308 1.045.000  2.002.722
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COMMITMENTS (cont’d)

The Group’s guarantees position as at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 is as follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Eximbank loans (*) 164.427.465 176.151.616
Ziraat Bank International A.G. (**) 10.541.938 46.510.305
Suppliers 8.356.125 3.519.200
Customers 511.560 1.023.120
Industrial Zone 368.560 368.560
Custom Offices 110.763 144.066
Other 741.271 625.340
Total contingent liabilities 185.057.682 228.342.207

(*) Letter of guarantees given for Eximbank loans are given as collateral for the loans utilized from

Eximbank.

(**) Letter of guarantees given for Ziraat Bank International A.G. for the loan with three years maturity.

PROVISIONS OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION BENEFITS

Payables related to employee benefits:

31 December

31 December

2017 2016

Social security premiums payable 1.739.360 2.034.196
Due to personnel 1.628.061 863.381
3.367.421 2.897.577

Short-term provisions for employee benefits:

31 December

31 December

2017 2016

Provision for bonus 1.250.000 2.100.000
Unused vacation provision 999.348 649.131
2.249.348 2.749.131
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PROVISIONS OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION BENEFITS (cont’d)

As of 3] December 2017 and 31 December 2016, bonus provision movement is as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at January | 2.100.000 1.800.000
Payments (1.500.056) (1.537.534)
Charge for the year 650.056 1.837.534
Provision at 31 December 1.250.000 2.100.000

As of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, unused vacation provision movement is as follows:

2017 2016
Balance at January | 649.131 565.324
Payments (1.015.177) {907.650)
Charge for the year 1.365.394 991.457
Provision at 31 December 999.348 649.131

Long-term provisions for emplovee benefits

Provision for retirement pay liability

Under Turkish Labor Law, the Group is required to pay termination benefits to each employee who has
completed certain years of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, who is called up
for military service, dies or retires after completing 25 years of service and reaches the retirement age (58 for
women and 60 for men).

The amount payable consists of one month’s salary limited to a maximum of TL 4.732,48 for each period
of service at 31 December 2017 (2016: TL 4.297,21).

Retirement pay liability is not subject to any kind of funding legally. Provision for retirement pay liability
is calculated by estimating the present value of probable liability amount arising due 1o retirement of
employees. TAS 19 Employee Benefits stipulates the development of group’s liabilities by using actuarial
valuation methods under defined benefit plans. In this direction, actuarial assumptions used in calculaticn
of total liabilities are described as follows:

The principal assumption is that the maximum liability for each year of service will increase parallel with
inflation. Thus, the discount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anticipated
effects of future inflation. Consequently, in the accompanying financial statements as at 31 December 2017,
the provision has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the
Group arising from the retirement of the employees.The provisions at the respective reporting dates have
been calculated with the assumption of 4,21% real discount rate (31 December 2016: 4,23%) calculated by
using 7,0% annual inflation rate and 11,50% discount rate. Estimated amount of retirement pay not paid due
to voluntary leaves is also taken into consideration as, 6,29% for employees with 0-15 years of service, and
100% for those with 16 or more years of service. Ceiling amount for provision for retirement pay is resived
semiannually, and the ceiling amount of TL 5.001,76 which is in effect since | January 2017 is used in the
calculation of Group's provision for retirement pay liability (1 January 2017: TL 4.426,16).

49



15.

KLIMASAN KLiMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.§. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

{All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"})

PROVISIONS OF EMPLOYEE TERMINATION BENEFITS (cont’d)

Long-term provisions for employee benefits (cont’d)

The principal assumptions used in the calculation of retirement pay liability are discount rate and anticipated
turnover rate.

e  If the discount rate had been 1% lower/(higher), provision for employee termination benefits would
increase/(decrease) by TL 787.036 (TL 659.649).

s If the anticipated turnover rate had been 1% higher/(lower) while all other variables were held
constant, provision for employee termination benefits would decrease/(increase) by TL [56.387 (TL
177.639)

Provision for retirement pay liability (cont’d)

As of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the provision for retirement pay movement is as
follows:

2017 2016
Provision at | January 4.894.724 4.106.230
Service cost 1.733.025 1.590.858
Interest cost 206.819 185.287
Termination benefits paid (945.033) (1.071.315)
Actuarial (gain)/loss (70.985) 83.664
Provision as of 31 December 5.818.550 4.894.724
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Raw material expenses (293.752.568) (195.786.330)
Personnel expenses {59.201.032) (46.158.684)
Production Qverheads {14.094.732) (10.690.190)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses (Note 9,10) (11.089.272) (8.707.892)
Transportation expenses (7.585.114) (5.598.518)
Warranty expenses (5.423.249) (4.305.547)
Rent expenses (3.983.748) (2.167.556)
Outsource expenses (2.124.131) (965.451)
Travel expenses (2.054.129) (1.325.584)
Consultancy expenses (2.398.455) (1.302.441)
Advertising expenses (1.816.191) (1.566.395)
Altendance fee of board of directors (660.000) {684.000)
Insurance expenses (617.693) (481.000)
Tax and other legal dues (313.019) (755.202)
Customs expenses (433.311) {333.062)
Training expense (326.796) {280.539)
Change in work in progress inventory 1.873.705 (1.537.515)
Change in finished goods inventory 30.094.061 (7.715.120)
Other (22.000.733) (18.397.258)
(395.906.407) (308.758.284)

OTHER ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The details of the other current assets as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

31 December

31 December

Other Current Assets 2017 2016
Restricted bank deposits 9.208.766 -
VAT return 4.515.838 2.009.029
Deferred VAT 6.625.657 525.878
Other current assets 158.798 74.676
20.509.059 2.609.583

The details of the other current liabilities as of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 are as follows:

31 December

31 December

Other Short-term Liabilities 2017 2016
Excise tax payable 1.250.492 691.762
VAT payable 33.022 -

1.283.514 691.762
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18. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS
a) Share Capital and Share Capital Adjusiment Differences

As of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, the share capital held is as follows:

Share 31 December 31 December
Sharcholders Type % 2017 % 2016

Metalfrio Solutions Sogutma Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. A 434 14.357.540 434 14.357.540

Metalfrio Solutions Sogutma Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. B 88 2.887.500 8,8 2.887.500

Metalfrio Solutions Sogutma Sanayi ve Tic. A.S. C 88 2.887.500 8,8 2.887.500
D

Publicly traded (*) 39,0 12.867.460 390 12.867.460
Nominal capital 100 33.000.000 100 33.000.000
Inflation adjustment differences 980.882 980.882
Adjusted capital 33.980.882 33.980.882

(*) Metalfrio Solutions Sogutma Sanayi ve Tic. A S.'s share in the capital structure of the Company is
68,75% when the 7,75% of the shares that are publicly trades is taken into consideration.

At 31 December 2017, the paid-in capital of the Group comprised 3.300.000.000 shares issued TL 0,01
each (31 December 2016: 3.300.000.000). The privileges given to ordinary shares are as follows:

At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, registered shares are comprised preferred shares. D type
shares are comprised listed shares and shares of real persons. D type shares cannot nominate candidates
for the Board of Directors.

Board of Directors is composed of six members; one member from candidates nominated by C type
shares, one member from candidates nominated by B type shares and four members from candidates
nominated by A type shares assigned by General Assembly. A, B and C type shares have fifteen and each
share in other type of shares have one voting power.
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SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND OTHER EQUITY ITEMS (cont’d)
Share Capital and Share Capital Adjustment Differences (cont'd)

Chairman of Board of Directors summons extracrdinary general meeting within seven days upon request
of the shareholder having at least 5% of the shares and agenda includes the issues requested by the
shareholder. This rate is not mandatory for A, B and C type shares.

At least 51% approval of A, B and C type shares is required on the decisions regarding master agreement
or to change the master agreement or to increase or decrease the share capital of the Group or on the
decisions regarding the attendance fee of the Board of Directors.

Profit Distribution

Public companies carry out profit distribution according to Capital Market Board’s Profit Distribution
Disclosure No II-19.1 effective from | February 2014,

Partnerships distribute their profits within the frame of profit distribution policies set by general meeting
of shareholders in accordance with legislation provisions. Within the scope of the relevant disclosure, no
minimum rate of distribution has been set. Companies distribute dividends in ways designated in their
articles of association or profit distribution policies.

The Group's net profit is TL 40.008.952 in the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016
which are prepared in accordance with the requirements of Capital Markets Law and Capital Markets
Board (“CMB”). Afler deducting the primary reserve amount of 1.482.030, net profit is TL 38.526.922.
The decision of not distributing the net profit but instead reserving {amounting to TL 38.526.922} as
retained earnings is submitted to the approval of the Ordinary General Assembly. In consequence of the
voting, the above-mentioned decision was accepted.

Restricted Reserves Appropriated from Profit

As of 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, restricted reserves appropriated from profit is as
follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Restricted reserves seperated from profit 5.666.104 4.184.074
5.666.104 4.184.074
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REVENUE
Sales

| January- | January-
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Domestic sales 218.094.135 148.409.528
Export sales 193.804.193 164.323.764
Other sales (*) 29.515.682 33.325.142
Sales deductions and discounts (**) (14.708.420) (8.280.528)
426.705.590 337.777.906

(*}  Other sales include material, spare part and commodity sales.

(**) Sales deductions and discounts include returns related to sales, discounts, sales commission,

turnover premium expenses and reflected transportation expenses.

Cost of Sales
1 January-
31 December
2017

1 January-
31 December
2016

Raw materials expenses (293.752.568)

(195.786.330)

Personnel expenses (42.749.664) (31.493.059)
Production Overheads (14.094.732) (10.690.190)
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 9,10) (5.258.729) (4.147.274)
Change in finished goods inventories (Note 7) 30.094.061 {7.715.120)
Change in work in progress inventories (Note 7) 1.873.705 (1.537.515)
Other (18.896.229) {15.417.381)

{342.784.156) (266.786.869)

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING EXPENSES AND RESEARCH

AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

General administrative expenses {-) (14.195.302) (12.276.303)
Marketing and sales expenses (-) (33.909.602) (25.645.624)
Research and development expenses (-) (5.017.347) (4.049.488)

{53.122.251)

(41.971.415)
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING EXPENSES AND RESEARCH

AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES (cont’d)

General administrative expenses

Payroll expenses

Consultancy expenses

Attendance fee of board of directors
QOutsource expenses

Taxes and other legal dues
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 9, 10)
Travel expenses

Rent expenses

Insurance expenses

Training expenses

Other

Marketing expenses

Payroll expenses
Transportation expenses
Warranty expenses

Rent expenses
Advertising expenses
QOutsource expenses
Travel expenses
Consultancy expenses
Custom expenses
Insurance expenses
Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 9, 10}
Training expenses
Other

55

1 January- | January-
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
(7.744.582) (7.004.211)}
(1.851.857) (1.113.344)
(660.000) (684.000)
(649.000) (560.771)
(313.019) (755.202)
(509.772) (362.112)
(463.722) (189.246)
(434.557) (256.667)
(227.475) (175.651)
(196.130) (125.992)
(1.145.188) (1.049.107)
(14.195.302) (12.276.303)
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
(8.706.786) (7.661.414)
(7.585.114) (5.598.518)
(5.423.249) (4.305.547)
(3.549.191) (1.910.889)
(1.816.191) (1.566.395)
(1.475.131) (404.680)
(1.590.407) (1.136.338)
(546.598) (189.097)
(433.311) (333.062)
(390.218) (305.349)
(322.061) (263.551)
(130.666) (154.547)
(1.940.679) (1.816.237)
(33.909.602) {25.645.624)
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GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES, MARKETING EXPENSES AND RESEARCH

AND DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES (cont’d)

Research and development expenses

| January- | January-

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Depreciation and amortization expenses (Note 9, 10) (4.998.710) (3.934.955)
Other (18.637) (114.533)
(5.017.347) (4.049.488)

Group has made an application to Ministry of Science, Industry and Technology to be a Research and
Development Center and as of 27 August 2014, the Group has the right to take Research and
Development Center license. Since this date, R&D expenses evaluated as project purposes are appraised

as “Construction in Progress”™ account under “Intangible Assets” as investments.

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

The details of other income from operating activities for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are

as follows:
1 January- I January-
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Foreign currency gains from operations,net 6.248.787 2.282.319
Income from scrap sales 1.237.834 769.266
Income from tax incentives related to R&D 905.908 833.799
Provisions released (Note 5) 354 476 -
Trade receivables time recovery interest income 124.853 592.198
Gain on fixed asset sales 179.732 160.425
Discount income/(expense) , net 284946 -
Other income 502817 1.387.742
9.929.353 6.025.749
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OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (cont’d)

The details of other expenses from operating activities for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31

December 2016 are as follows:

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Provision expense for doubtful receivables (Note 5) (47.322) (634.773)
Discount income/{expense) , net - (634.419)
Legal provision (276.158) (540.566)
Other expenses from operations (362.512) (385.686)
(685.992) (2.195.444)

INCOME AND EXPENSES FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

The details of other income from investing activities for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are

as follows:

Income from investing activities

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Increase in value of financial investments (*} 38.193.935 20.168.270
Interest income 18.193.267 12.238.972
Foreign exchange gains related

to investing activities, net 21.652.566 24.687.079
Dividend income - 30.175
78.039.768 57.124.496

Expenses from investing activities
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
2017 2016
Decrease in value of financial investments (*) (36.209.872) (3.488.175)
(36.209.872) (3.488.175)

(*) Value increases / decreases of financial investments resulted from the increase / decrease in the

shares traded in Eurobond and the stock exchange which the company owns.
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FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

Foreign exchange expenses related to financing activities, nt
Interest expenses on bank loans {-)

Interest income

Other finance expenses (-)

1 January- 1 january-

31 December 31 December
2017 2016
(53.318.494) (32.637.338)
(12.555.838) {8.565.828)
1.384.397 965.871
(3.972.429) (3.015.791)
(68.462.364) (43.253.086)

INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES)

31 December

31 December

Current tax asset

Current corporate tax provision
Less: Prepaid taxes and funds

Income tax recognized in profit or loss

Current tax expense
Deferred tax {expense) / income relating to
origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax expense

Deferred tax

Recorded directly in equity :
- Acturial gain or loss

2017 2016

- 2.134.800

- (5.165.649)

- (3.030.849)

1 January- 1 January-

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

- (2.134.800)

1.283.956 (1.089.410)
1.283.956 (3.224.210)

1 January- | January-

31 December 31 December
2017 2016

14.197 (16.733)
14.197 (16.733)
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INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

Corporate Tax

Klimasan, is subject to Turkish corporate taxes. Provision is made in the accompanying financial
statements for the estimated charge based on the Group’s results for the years and periods. Turkish tax
legislation does not permit a parent company and its subsidiary to file a consolidated tax return.
Therefore, provisions for taxes, as reflected in the accompanying consolidated financial statements, have
been calculated on a separate-entity basis.

Corporate tax is applied on taxable corporate income, which is calculated from the statutory accounting
profit by adding back non-deductible expenses, and by deducting dividends received from resident
companies, other exempt income and investment incentives utilized.

Metalfric Poland SP. Z.0.0. operates in Poland and is subject to Poland corporate taxes. The effective tax
rate in 2017 is 19% (2016: 19%).

Companies file their tax returns between 1-25 April following the close of the accounting year to which
they relate. Tax authorities may, however, examine such returns and the underlying accounting records

and may revise assessments within five years.

Income Withholding Tax

In addition to corporate taxes, companies should also calculate income withholding taxes and funds
surcharge on any dividends distributed, except for companies receiving dividends who are Turkish
residents and Turkish branches of foreign companies. Income withholding tax applied in between 24
April 2003 - 22 July 2006 is 10% and commencing from 22 July 2006, this rate has been changed to 15%
upon the Council of Minister’s’ Resolution No: 2006/10731. Undistributed dividends incorporated in
share capital are not subject to income withholding tax.

Rediced Corporate Tax and State Incentive Implementation

Reduce corporate tax can be applied the income obtained from the investments that subject to the
incentive certificate and its scope specified in corporate tax Law no. 5520 dated 28 February 2009 and
numbered 32/A which is added with the Law no.5838, until the amount reaches the contribution amount
from the accounting pericd in which the investment is partially or fully operated. . In addition, according
to the Decree on State Aids for Investments no. 2012/3305, which was updated with the Council of
Ministers Decree No. 2017/9917 published in Official Gazette dated 22/02/2017 and numbered 29987, for
the investment expenditures realized between 1/1/2017 and 31/12/2017, the investment contribution rate
used in tax reduction incentive has been raised from 30% to 45%. Hence, the corporate tax reduction is
applied at a rate of a hundred percent and the rate to be applied to the profits from the investor's other
activities in the investment period of the investment contribution of the investor's contribution during the
investment period is applied at a rate of a hundred percent. As of the 4th temporary tax period of the year
2017, the entity was not subject to the application of the discounted corporation tax since the temporary
tax assessment did not occur.
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INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

Deferred Tax

Klimasan recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon temporary differences arising between
its financial statements as reported for TAS purposes and its statutory tax financial statements. These
differences usually result in the recognition of revenue and expenses in different reporting periods for
TAS and tax purposes and they are given below.

Tax rate used in the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities was 22% over temporary liming
differences expected to be reversed in 2018, 2019 and 2020, and 20% over temporary timing differences
expected 1o be reversed in 2021 and the following years (2016: 20%).

Movement of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the period ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December
2016 are as follows:

31 December 31 December

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities): 2017 2016
Deferred tax asset arising from investmen incentive
discount 3.635.777 i
Deferred tax assel arising from Research and

Development incentive discount 1.384.065 i
Unused tax losses

recognized as deferred tax assets 1.242.949 -
Provision for employment termination benefits 1.163.710 978.945
Provision for warranty 645.522 471,510
Seasonality adjustments and impairment of inventory 335.676 312.723
Adjustments related to unrealized finance expense 271,634

for trade receivables and notes receivables ' 170.640
Adjustments for the other provisions 244.140 204.975
Provision for bonuses 275.000 420.000
Unused vacation provision 219.857 129.826
Legal provision adjustments 219.095 149.076
Adjustments related to the sales commission and rebates 96.162 220.858
Valuation differences on debentures and bonds (2.591.599) 882.793
Depreciation adjustments for tangible assets (1.150.160) (948.147)

and amortisation adjustments for intangible assets
Valuation differences of derivative instruments (239.702) 98.774
Adjustments related to unrealized finance income

for trade payables (173.836) (24.743)
Valuation difference of receivables in foreign exchange - 1.079.814
Provision for doubtful receivables - 141.929
Other (122.372) (102.814)

5455918 4.186.159

60



24,

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Tuekish Lira (“TL™))

INCOME TAXES (INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES) (cont’d)

Deferred Tax {(cont'd)

Expiry dates of the unused tax losses are as follows:

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
Expiring in 2022 6.214.745 -
6.214.745 -
Movement of deferred tax assets / {liability):
2017 2016
Opening balance as of | January 4.186.159 5.258.836
Charged to profit or loss 1.283.956 (1.089.410)
Charged to equity (14.197) 16.733
Closing balance as of 31 December 5.455.918 4.186.159
Reconciliation of the tax loss for the period with the profit for the period is as follows:
1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
Reconcilation of tax charge: 2017 2016
Profit before tax 13.410.076 43.233.162
Tax rate of 20% (2016: 20%) 2.682.015 8.646.632
Tax effects of
- revenue is exempl from taxation (178.258) (1.275.212)
- non-deductible expenses 158.742 149.438
- expenses that are subject to reduced corporate lax
within the scope of investment incentives (3.635.777) (4.310.896)
- research and development incentives and
other discounts (1.384.065) -
- tax raie change from 20% 1o 22% 18.717 -
- effects of different tax rates on the subsidary 19% - 5.957
- other 994.670 8.291
Income tax expense recognised in profit or loss (1.283.956) 3.224.210
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(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"))
EARNINGS PER SHARE

The computation for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 is as follows:

1 January- 1 January-
31 December 31 December
Earnings per share 2017 2016
Number of weighted average of ordinary sales
which has TL 1 nominal value 33.000.000 33.000.000
Net profit for the period 14.694.032 40.008.952
Earnings per share 0,4453 1,2124

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Currency Derivatives:

The Group utilizes derivatives to hedge significant future transactions and cash flows. The Group is a
party of foreign currency forward contracts and options based on the foreign currency risk management.

The instruments purchased are primarily denominated in the currencies of the Group’s principal markets.

As of the reporting date, the change in the fair value of the Group's obligations to make forward contracts
that are not oultstanding is, recorded in profit or loss in the period.

3] December 2017 31 December 2016
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Forward conlracts 1.089.555 - - (493.869)
1.089.555 - - {493.869)
Short-term 1.089.555 - - (493.869)
1.089.555 - - {493.869)

The forward foreign exchange contracts regarding the foreign currency risks of 31 December 2017 and 31
December 2016 are as follows:
31 December 31 December

Forward contracts 2017 2016
Sales Contract - US Dollar 24.036.000 2.000.000
Purchase Contract - Euro 20.000.000 1.756.389
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Investments

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

31 December

31 December

2017 2016

Eurobond investments 151.146.340 239.526.010
Common stocks listed in the stock exchage - 1.389.257
151.146.340 240.915.267

The Group, in order to evaluate the resulting surplus funds during certain periods, invests in various
countries’ the private sector bonds and bills. The Group, according to current market conditions, is due to
be bound to perform transactions. Current portfolio consisting of 54,1% US Dollar, 45,1% Euro and 0,1%
GBP, the Eurobond portfolio are valued at market prices each period and periodic profit or loss effect is

presented in the consolidated financial statements.

Financial Liabilities

31 December 2017

31 December 2016

Current portion of long-term borrowings 78.678.177 120.612.488
Long-term borrowings 264.613.574 214.676.800
343.291.751 335.289.288

Weighted average 31 December 2017
Currency type effective interest rate Current Non-current
Euro 2,35%-4,30% 40.945.174 264.613.574
US Dollar 3% -4,50% 37.733.003 -
78.678.177 264.613.574

Weighted average 31 December 2016
Currency type effective interest rate Current Non-current
Euro 2,35% - 3,75% 101.166.564 179.485.078
US Dollar 4,50% 19.445.924 35.191.722
120.612.488 214.676.800
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Financial Liabilities {cont’d)

The borrowings are repayable as follows:

31 December

31 December

To be paid within 1 year

To be paid between 1-2 years
To be paid between 2-3 years
To be paid between 3-4 years
To be paid between 4-5 years
To be paid in more than 5 years

2017 2016
78.678.177 120.612.488
108.860.243 67.753.398
98.066.477 80.158.803
12.541.263 19.370.918
9.029.627 10.303.421
36.115.964 37.090.260
343.291.751 335.289.288

Group's cash and non-cash loans are guaranteed by Group’s ultimate shareholder Metalfrio Solutions

Sogutma Sanayi ve Ticaret A.$.

Fair value of the Group’s borrowings approximates their carrying amount.

The cash and non-cash changes related to the Group's financing activities are given below. The liabilities
arising from financing activities are classified as "cash flows from financing activities” in the statement of

cash flows of the Group.

Non-cash changes

1 January Financial Movements of Accrual of 31 December

2017  cash flows exchange differences  interest 2017
Bank loans 335.289.288 {65.790.728) 61.237.353 12.555.838 343.291.751
335.289.288 (65.790.728) 61.237.353 12.555.838 343.291.751
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure to continue as going concerns while maximizing the return to
stakeholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 27,
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The cost of capital and any risks associated with each class of capital is evaluated by the Group
management. Based on recommendations of the Group management, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The strategy of the Group was unchanged from the previous period.
The gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and financial

investments divided by total capital and the gearing ratio as at 31 December 2017 and 2016 are as
follows:

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

Financial liabilities 343.291.751 335.289.288
Less: Cash and cash equivalents and

Short-term Investments (302.918.297) (311.986.084)

Net Debt 40.373.454 23.303.204

Total Equity 146.728.669 131.340.174

Total Share Capital 187.102.123 154.643.378

Net Debt / Total Equity Ratio 22% 15%

Financial Risk Factors

The Group's aclivities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk, liquidity risk,
currency risk and credit risk.

This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Group's
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing risk.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework. The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze
the risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. The Group, through its training and management standards and procedures, maintains
a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations.
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Financial Risk Factors (cont’d)

Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument
fails to meet its contractual obligations.

Group has made obtained about the customers previous experiences and present, financial situation, and
geographical status and has determine customer limit and risks via analysis.

Receivables
Trade Reccivabley Onber Reccivabley
Dcpositat Einangcial
31 December 2017 Related Party Third Party Relsted Pary Third Pary  Banks  Lovestments
Maximum credit risk as of repocting date (A+B+C+D) (*) 6.803.511 68857985  33.467.284 2.078.225 151.724.657  151.146.340
- Portion of maximum risk secured by guaraniees eic. (*°) - 8811150
A Net carying value of neither past due nor impaired financial assets 5916957 £2.295.586 33 467.284 2.078.225 151.724.657 151,146,340
B. Net carrying value of past due but nor impaired financial assets 836.554 16.562.39%
C. Net carrying value of impaired financial assets
« Past due { gross camrying value B 13.478.602
- Impairment {-) - {13.478.602)
« Net value part secured with collateral - -
« Undue {gross camrying value)
- [mpairment {-)

- Net value part seeured with collateral
D Credit risk inchuded off the balance sheet tems

(*) Factors enhancing the credibility, such as guarantees received, have not been taken into account in
determination of amounts.

(**) Guarantees includes guaranteed notes, guaranteed checks and mortgages from customers.
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Financial Risk Factors (cont’d)

Credit risk management (cont'd)

Receivables
Trade Receivables Other Receivables
Deposit at. Finsncial
31 December 2016 Bclated Party Third Party Related Party Third Party Banks Investments
Maximum credin risk as of reporting date (A+B+C+D) (*) 6.265.962 75.797.878 18.211.999 1432526 71.038.503 240.915.267
- Portion of maximum risk secured by guarantees etc. (**) - 22.663.867
A. Net carrying value of neither past due nor impaired financial assets 1.567.234 50628422 13.211.9%9 1432526 T1L038.503  240.915.267
B. Net carrying value of past due bul nor impaired financial assets 4.698.72% 35.169.456
C. Net carvying value of impaired financial assets
- Pasi dur (gross camying value - 11.476.342

- Impairment (-) = {11.476.342)
« Net value part secured with collaieral - -
- Undue (gross camying value)

- Impairment (-}

« Net value part secured with collaieral

D. Credit risk included off the balance sheet items

(*) Factors enhancing the credibility, such as guarantees received, have not been taken into account in
determination of amounts.

(**) Guarantees includes guaranteed notes, guaranteed checks and mortgages from customers.

The Group's management has tried to manage the credit risk of receivables according to customer-
specific credit risk analysis through such methods as advances obtained from customer or work with
letter of credit. The Group protects itself from any dispute by analyzing the reliability of their customers,
putting required sales terms to sales contracts. Furthermore, the Group management follows the delays in
collections from its customers by analyzing aging analyses and takes precautions to such kind of delays.
The Group provides provision for its receivables having collection problems. Provisions for doubtful
receivables are within the prescribed limits when previous experience of the Group in collection from
customers is reviewed. Accordingly, the Group does not expect any other risk for its remaining
receivables.

31 December 31 December
Trade Receivables 2017 2016
1 to 30 days overdue 11.247.386 4.199.372
1 to 3 months overdue 2.672.163 9.088.434
3 to 12 months overdue 1.439.717 14.316.409
Over | - 5 years overdue 2.089.687 2.263.969
Total overdue receivables 17.448.953 29.868.184
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NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Financial Risk Factors {cont’d})

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk occurs generally while funding Group’s activities funding and managing Group’s position.
This risk of includes failing to fund assets at appropriate maturities and rates and a convenient time slice
of an asset at a reasonable price and also the risk of failing to dispose of them. The Group is entitled to
use banks, dealers and shareholders as source of funds. Group consistently evaluates changes in its
funding conditions necessary to achieve the objectives set out within the strategy and evaluate the
liquidity risk by monitoring continuously. As of reporting date, the Group can be exposed to the funding
risk.

The Group manages its liquidity risk by following its cash flow regularly, keeping continuity of its
funding resources by matching the maturity of its liabilities and assets.

Prudent liquidity risk management represents maintaining sufficient cash funds with sufficient credit
transactions to close out market positions of resource availability and the ability.

The risk of funding current and future borrowing requirements is managed by sustaining the accesiblity of
adequate number of high-quality loan supplier.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining coniractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

31 December 2017
Total cas
outflows as per
the terms of
agreement Lessthan3  Between3-12 Between 1-5  Morethan 5
Maturities as per the terms Book Value  (I+II+1IIHIV) months (1) months (IT) years (ITh) vears (V)

Non-derivative
financial liabilities

Bank borrowings (343.291.751) (372.090.783) (5.785.570)  (B2.481.757) (245.013.595) (38.809.861)
Trade payables (135.520.915) (136.462.001) (123.349.895)  {(13.066.826) (45.2380) -
Other payables {366.942) {366.942) (338.097} - (28.845)

Total liabilities {479.179.608) (508.919.726) (129.473.562)  (95.548.583) (245.087.720) (38.809.861)
Derivative cash inflows 1.089.555 90.310.000 - 90.310.000 - -
Derivative cash outflows - {90.661.388) - (90.661.388) - -
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28. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

b)  Financial Risk Factors (cont’d)

b.2) Liguidity risk management {cont'd)

31 December 2016
Total cas

outflows as per
the terms of

agreement Lessthan3 Between3-12  Between 1-S  More than $

Maturities as per the terms Book Value (I+II+ITI+IV) months (1) months (I1) years (IIT) years (IV)
Non-derivative

financial liabilities
Bank borrowings (335.289.288) (361.551.790) (5.285.356) (124.456.805) (191.341.076) (40.468.553)
Trade payables (59.965.313) (59.267.454)  (55.423.499) (3.843.955) - -
Other payables (233.677} (233.677) (204.832) - (28.845) -
Total liabilities (395.488.278) (421.052.921) (60.913.687) (128.300.760) (191.369.921) (40.468.553)
Derivative cash inflows - 6.516.027 - 6.516.027 - -
Derivative cash outflows (493.869) (7.038.400) - (7.038.400) - -

b.3)} Market risk management

The Group's operations are primarily exposed to changes in foreign exchange and interest rate risks
associated with financial market risks encountered as given in the details below. Markel risks at the
Group level measured by sensitivity analysis.

In current year, there is no change in the Group's exposure to market risk or exposure risk management
and assessment when compared to prior year,

b.3.1) Foreign currency risk management

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies result in foreign currency risk.

Klimasan is exposed the currency risk as a result of foreign currency denominated in assets and liabilities
into Turkish Lira. Foreign currency risk from future commercial transactions recorded arises due to the
difference between the assets and liabilities, Hence, the exchange rate exposures are managed within the
approved policy parameters utilizing forward foreign exchange contracts.

Metalfrio Solutions Poland SP. Z.0.0 is not exposed to significant foreign currency exposure as the
transactions are held in EUR which is also its functional currency.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated monelary assets and monetary
liabilities at the reporting period are as follows:

69



28.
b)
b.3)

b.3.1)

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAY!I VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TC THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™))

NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Financial Risk Factors {cont'd)

Market risk management {cont 'd)

Foreign currency risk management (cont’d)

31 December 2017

TL Equivalent

{Functional

Currency) LS Dollar Euro GBP NGN
1. Trade Receivables 42.067.543 2.966.296 6.814.894 - 8.610.993
2a. Monetary Financial Asscls 215918819 25021.550 26,647.251 63660 12.162.191
2b. Non-monctary Financial Assets 326587 $.067.000 3.000.060 - -
3, Other 9.208.766 - - - 745.851.703
4. CURRENT ASSETS 299.853.845 33.054.846 36,462 145 61.660 826.624.887
5. Trade Receivables - - - - -
6a. Monctary Financial Asscls - - - - -
6b. Non-monetary Financial Assets - - - - .
7. Other . . . . .
& NON-CURRENT ASSETS - - - - -
9. TOTAL ASSETS 199,853,845 33.0%40.846 36.462.145 63,660 826.624.887
10. Trade Payables §1.304.733 7.419.252 11.329.381 14.795 169.039.692
11. Financial Liabilitics 37.733.001 10.003.712 - - -
12a. Mondtary Other Liabilities - - - -
12b. Non-monctary other liabilitics - - - - -
13. SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES 119.037.734 17.422.964 11.329.331 14.795 169.039.692
14, Trade Payables - - - - R
15. Financial Liabilitics 305.558.749 - 67.668.863 - -
16a. Monctary Other Liabilitics B B - B -
16k Non-monctary Ciher Liabilics - - - - -
17. LONG-TERM LIABILITES 305.558.749 . 67.668.863 .
18, TOTAL LIABILITIES 414.596.433 17.422.964 78.998.244 14.795 16%.039.692
19. Off-balance sheet derivative instrumenis
et asset / liability position (19a-19b) (351.388) (24.016.000) 20.000.000 - -
19a. Off-balance sheel foreign currency 90.310.000 - 20.000.000 - -
denivative asscls
19b. OfF-balance sheet forcign cumency 90.661.388 24.036.000 - - -
denvative asscts
20. Net foreign currency assets / liabilities position (125.094.026} (8.404.118) {22.536.09%) 48.865 657.585.19%
21. Monctary items a¢t foreign curreney assels / liabilities
(1+2a+5+62-10-11-12a-14-15-16a) (166.610.121} 10.564.382 {45.536.099) 48.865 {88.266.508)
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28, NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

b)  Financial Risk Factors (cont’d)

b.3} Market risk management (cont'd)

b.3.1) Foreign currency risk management (cont 'd)

31 December 2016

TL Equivalent
(Functional
Currency) US Dollar Eure GBFP

1. Trade Reccivables 58.127.105 8.470.211 7.633.249 -
2a. Monctary Financial Asscis 307.703.647 54.275.574 28.189.195 2.305.796
2b. Non-monctary Financial Asscts 17.596.000 5.000.000 - -
3. Other - - - .
4. CURRENT ASSETS 383.426.752 67.745.785 35.822.484 2.805.796
5. Trade Reccivables - - . N
6a. Monetary Financial Asscis - - - -
6b. Non-monctary Financial Asscts - - - -
7. Other - - - -
8. NON-CURRENT ASSETS - - R -
9. TOTAL ASSETS 383.426.752 67.745.785 35.822.484 2.805.796
10. Trade Payables 31.410.099 2.954.225 5.658.397 4979
11. Financial Liabilitics 120.612.489 5.525.666 27.269.351 -
12a. Monctary Other Liabilities - - - -
12b. Non-monciary other liabilitics - B - -
13. SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES 152.022.588 8.479.891 32927748 4979
4. Trade Payables - - - -
15. Financial Liabilitics 214.676.799 9.999.921 48.380.031 -
16a. Monctary Other Liabilitics - - - -
16b. Non-monctary Other Liabilics - - - -
17. LONG-TERM LIABILITES 214.676.799 9.999,92| 48.380.031 -
18. TOTAL LIABILITIES 366.699.387 18.479.812 81.307.779 4.979
19. Oif-balance sheet derivative instruments

net assct / liability position {19a-19b) (522.372) {2.000.000) 1.756.389 -
19a. Off-balance sheet foreign cumrency 6.516.028 - 1.756.349 -
derivative asscts - - -
19b. Off-balance shect forcign curmency 7.038.400 2.000.000 - -
derivative assets - . -
20, Net foreign currency assets [ liabilities posilion 16.204.993 47.265.973 (43.718.906) 2.800.817
21. Monctary items net forcign currency assets / liabilitics

(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a) (868.635) 44.265.973 (45.485.295) 2.800.817
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28.

b)

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™))

NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Financial Risk Factors (cont'd)

b.3)  Market risk management {cont 'd}

b.3.1) Foreign currency risk management (cont 'd)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with

respect to US Dollar, Euro and GBP.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a 10% increase and decrease in US Dollar, Euro and
GBP against TL. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's assessment of the possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates.
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit or equity.

31 December 2017
Profit / Loss

10% strengthening of
foreign currency

10% weakening of
foreign currency

1- US Doliar net asset / liability
2- Portion from US Dollar hedged (-)

3- Net Effect of US Dollar (1+2)

4- EURO net asset / liabilitiy
5- Portion from EURO hedged (-)

6- Net Effect of Euro (4+5)

7- GBP net asset / liabilitiy
8- Portion from GBP hedged (-)

9- Net Effect of GBP (7+8)

10- NGN net asset / liabilitiy
1- Portion from NGN hedged (-)

12- Net Effect of NGN (7+8)

TOTAL (3+6+9+12)

(3.169.949) 3.169.949
(3. 169.945;) 3. 169.949-
(10.176.175) 10.176.175
(10.176.175-) 10.176.175-
24.825 (24.825)
24.82-5 (24.825-)
811.897 (811.897)
81 1.89—7 (81 l.897-)
(12.509.402) 12.509.402
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAY1 VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

{All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"))

28. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

b) Financial Risk Factors {cont'd)

b.3) Market risk management {cont'd)

b.3.1) Foreign currency risk management {(cont'd)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis (cont’d)

31 December 2016

Profit / Loss

10% strengthening of 10% weakening of

foreign currency foreign currency

1- US Dollar net asset / liability 16.633.841 (16.633.841)
2- Portion from US Dollar hedged (-) - -
3- Net Effect of US Dollar (1+2) 16.633.841 (16.633.841)
4- EURO net asset / liabilitiy (16.222.987) 16.222.987
5- Portion from EURQ hedged (-) - -
6- Net Effect of Euro (4+5) (16.222.987) 16.222.987
7- GBP net asset / liabilitiy 1.209.645 (1.209.645)
8- Portion from GBP hedged (-) - -
9- Net Effect of GBP (748) 1.209.645 (1.209.645)
TOTAL (3+6+9) 1.620.499 (1.620.499)
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KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Al amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"™))

28. NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS ARISING FROM FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

b) Financial Risk Factors (cont’d)
b.3) Market risk management (cont'd)
b.3.2) Interest rate risk management

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk as the entity borrow funds at both fixed and floating interest
rates. The Group’s interest rate risk management strategy is evaluated on a regular basis in order to be
compatible with interest rate expectations and defined risk appetites. Thus, creation of optimal hedging
strategy serves the need to review the statement of financial position and to keep interest expense under

control against volatile rates.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

Interest Position Movement

Instruments with Fixed Interest
Financial Assets Time deposits with maturities less than threec months
Asscts which fair value is reflected to profit and loss

Financial Liabilities

Instruments with Variable Interest
Financial Liabilitics

31 December

31 December

2017 2016
140.356.982 28.999.868
151.146.340 240.915.267
169.249.247 153.409.489
174.042.504 181.879.799

If interest rates in all currencies had been 100 basis points higher and all other variables were held
constant, the profit before tax for the year ended 31 December 2017 would decrease by TL 5.642.306 (31
December 2016: TL 6.450.888). Due to the effect of relevant change in exchange rate on equity without
affecting profit/loss, equity would be TL 5.642.306 (31 December 2016: TL 6.450.888) lower.
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29.

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

{All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira ("TL™})

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES AND EXPLANATIONS ON
HEDGE ACCOUNTING) (cont’d)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined and grouped as follows:

e Level I: the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted market
prices;

o Level 2: the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis
using prices from observable current market transactions; and

e [Level 3: the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities are determined where
there is no observable market data.

Fair value hierarchy of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value:

Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting pericd. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined.

Fair Value Fair Value Level
Financial Assets / Financial Liabilities
31 December 2017| 31 December 2016
Financial Investments 151.146.340 239.526.010 1
Common Shares (held for trading) - 1.389.257 1
Foreign currency forward contracts 1.089.555 (493.869) 2
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30.

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAYI VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

{All amounts expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL"))

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURES AND EXPLANATIONS ON
HEDGE ACCOUNTING) (cont’d)

Other price risks

The Group invests in private sector bonds and bills in various countries in order to manage the excess
funding that arises in certain periods. The Group performs trading transactions irrespective of the
current market conditions and the changes in the market price of the securities are reflected in the
financial statements periodically. As such, the Group is subject to price risk of changes in market
prices or the amortisation of an Eurobond issuer entity.

In addition, the Group is exposed to principal or interest risk in such circumstances that an Eurobond
issuer declares bankruptcy or postpones amortization or the coupon payments.

The following table shows the Group's sensitivity to the market price of each eurobond according to
10% increase and decrease probability. The sensitivity analysis only covers the Eurobond portfolio at
the end of the reporting period and is subject to a 10% price change, subject to the original foreign
currency price at the end of the period. Positive value refers to the increase in profit or loss and other
equity items.

Profit / Loss
10% strengthening of 10% weakening of
market prices market prices
31 December 2017 14.990.430 (14.990.430)
31 December 2016 23.569.298 (23.569.298)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 7 February 2018, the Company acquired 100% of the shares of the companies titled LLC Metalfrio

Solutions and LLC Estate registered in Kaliningrad, Russia, amounting to Euro 5.705.719 upon the
board decision no. 29 dated 20 October 2017.
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31.

KLIMASAN KLIMA SANAY! VE TICARET A.S. AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(All amounis expressed in Turkish Lira (“TL™))

DISCLOSURES RELATED TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

At 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016 cash and cash equivalents comprised the following:

31 December

31 December

2017 2016

Cash on hand 47.300 32314
Cash at banks (*) 151.611.933 70.819.041
Time deposit with maturities less than three months 140.356.982 28.999.868
Demand deposits 11.254.951 41.819.173
Other cash and cash equivalents 112.724 219.462
151.771.957 71.070.817

Interest accrual related to time deposits (432.357) -
Cash and cash equivalents 151.339.600 71.070.817

(*) Cash and cash equivalents amounting to TL 9.208.766 are classified as other current assets since
their use in the continuing operations fullfillment of liabilities is restricted. The Group

management foresees that this restriction will be lifted within 3 months.

As at 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016, details of time deposits are as follows:

31 December

Currency Interest Rate (%) Maturity 2017
TL 14,30 - 15,50 January 2018 85.723.681
Euro 1,40 - 1,60 January 2018 44.257.719
US Dollar 3,10-3,40 January 2018 10.375.582
140.356.932

31 December

Currency Interest Rate (%) Maturity 2016
TL 8,50 - 10,00 January 2017 2.500.986
Euro 1,60-1,75 January 2017 15.584.773
US Dollar 3,00 -3,65 January 2017 10.914.109
28.999.868
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